# META POLYTECHNIC - STUDENT CATALOG



School of Nursing VN Student Catalog

www.metapolytechnic.com (619) 679-2893

November 4, 2025 to December 18, 2026

#### **NOTATIONS**

The contents of this catalog may be subject to change throughout the program. Please be advised that the Meta Polytechnic Student Catalog contains policies and procedures that apply to all students and are the primary source of reference. If there are any discrepancies or differences in policies or procedures that are contained in the Meta Polytechnic Student Catalog with those contained in the VN Student Catalog, the Meta Polytechnic Student Catalog will be followed. Course syllabi have the most current course requirements, and will be followed should the syllabus differ from the Meta Polytechnic Catalog or VN Student Catalog.

All core nursing courses in the pre-licensure programs must be completed with a minimum grade of a "C" or 75%. A final course grade of 74.5% will be rounded to 75%.

THIS INSTITUTION DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF RACE, COLOR, AND RELIGION, NATIONAL OR ETHNIC ORIGIN, SEX, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, GENDER IDENTITY OR STATUS, MARITAL, PARENTAL, FAMILIAL, VETERAN OR MILITARY SERVICE STATUS, AGE, OR DISABILITY.

#### Table of Contents

#### INTRODUCTION

- MISSION STATEMENT 5
- PROGRAM PHILOSOPHY 6
- CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK 6
- INSTITUTIONAL APPROVAL 9
- VOCATIONAL NURSING PROGRAM MONITORING 9
- REQUIREMENTS FOR ELIGIBILITY FOR LICENSURE
- GOVERNING BOARD 13
- RESOURCES 14

#### **ADMISSIONS**

- ADMISSION REQUIREMENTS 15
- EQUIPMENT-17
- LIBRARY/ LEARNING RESOURCE CENTER 19
- ENTRANCE ASSESSMENT 21
- ACCEPTANCE BY THE SCHOOL 22
- ALTERNATES 22
- SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER 22
- DRUG SCREEN 23
- READMISSION 23
- CREDIT FOR PREVIOUS TRAINING 24
- STUDENT'S RIGHT TO CANCEL 27
- WITHDRAWAL POLICY 27
- REFUND POLICY 27
- FINANCIAL AID 29

#### GUIDELINES AND POLICIES FOR ENROLLMENT IN CLINICAL AND THEORY

- DESCRIPTION OF EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 30
- ELIGIBILITY FOR LICENSURE 69
- ATTENDANCE POLICY 71
- LEAVE OF ABSENCE 74
- ACADEMIC PROBATION & DISMISSAL POLICY 75
- EDUCATIONAL COST 76
- STUDENT SERVICES 81
- CLINICAL EXPERIENCE/ EXTERNSHIP 81

# GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS/ GRADING POLICY

- GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 83
- GRADING POLICY 84
- REMEDIATION POLICY 85
- STUDENT RECORDS 85

#### PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR

- STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT 90
- DRESS CODE 90
- HAZING POLICY 91
- CLASSROOM AND LABORATORY CONDUCT 92
- STUDENT COMPUTER NETWORK AND INTERNET CONDUCT 92
- CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT 93

- NO DISCRIMINATION OR HARASSMENT POLICY 93
- MARITAL OR PARENTAL STATUS 93
- SEXUAL HARASSMENT 93
- RACIAL, RELIGIOUS, OR NATIONAL ORIGIN HARASSMENT 94
- CAMPUS SAFETY POLICY 94
- WITHDRAWAL FOR VIOLATION OF SCHOOL POLICY 95
- GRIEVANCE POLICY 95
- STUDENT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 100

#### MISSION STATEMENT

At the Meta Polytechnic, we are committed to prepare students to become technically competent, culturally sensitive, and compassionate healthcare professionals within a culture of personal accountability and integrity. We continuously pursue more effective and innovative ways in our curriculum to equip the graduate with the knowledge, skills, and attitudes to function safely within the scope of the nursing practice as set forth by the State of California's Department of Consumer Affairs, specifically, the Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians (BVNPT) that will enhance the quality of life in the communities we serve.

# PURPOSE OF THE VOCATIONAL NURSING PROGRAM

The Vocational Nursing Program at Meta Polytechnic will teach students essential nursing knowledge and skills that prepare them for a career in healthcare. Once students have met all program goals, they are eligible to take the NCLEX-VN exam to become a Licensed Vocational Nurse (LVN).

# **OBJECTIVES:**

Upon completion of the Vocational Nursing Program at Meta Polytechnic the student will:

- 1. Successfully pass the NCLEX-VN on the first attempt.
- 2. Function with accountability as defined in the statutes of the Vocational Nurse Practice Act.
- 3. Provide safe, caring and compassionate nursing care to diverse patients across the lifespan in various healthcare settings.
- 4. Exhibit sensitivity when dealing with clients based on cultural diversity.
- 5. Effectively communicate and collaborate with patients, families and members of the health care team verbally and through accurate and complete documentation of client status and nursing interventions.
- 6. Provide leadership to the unlicensed assistive personnel members of the healthcare team.
- 7. Recognize the Licensed Vocational Nurses' various roles within the healthcare delivery system, such as a client advocate and catalyst to promote positive change.

# PROGRAM PHILOSOPHY

Meta Polytechnic nursing faculty believe that:

Nursing Education: The purpose of vocational nursing education is to prepare students for licensure and entry-level vocational nursing practice. Nursing courses and clinical experiences are sequenced across the curriculum in increasing complexity. The nursing curriculum has been designed specifically to provide an instructional framework that is consistent with the educational needs of the vocational nursing student. The faculty endeavors throughout the program to guide and encourage students in the appropriate use of existing and emerging technologies in order to provide safe, culturally-sensitive, patient-centered care supported by current evidence. The faculty further believes in emphasizing lifelong learning and actively promotes their graduates to the appropriate education needed to provide safe and effective nursing care.

Teaching: Teaching is an active process wherein one individual shares information with another to facilitate learning and thereby promote learning. The teacher is the facilitator of learning who uses a variety of goal-directed activities to the transfer of knowledge by assisting the learner to absorb new information. The receiver of new information, the student, is responsible for accepting and integrating the information.

Learning: Learning is the act or process of acquiring knowledge or skills in a particular subject. Learning is continuous. This is especially true in the field of nursing.

# **CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK**

The Meta Polytechnic Vocational Nursing Conceptual Framework reflects concepts as defined in Dorothea Orem's self-care nursing model and Maslow's Hierarchy of Needs. This theory focuses on the performance or practice of activities that individuals initiate and perform on their own behalf to maintain life, health, and well-being. Throughout the curriculum, the use of the nursing process emphasizes health promotion, maintenance, and restoration, with the patient as the central focus. Our framework is designed to illustrate that vocational nursing can provide care intended to increase client independence and maximize self-care needs.

Self-Care Requisites can be summarized as actions directed toward the provision of self-care and is presented in three categories:

1. Universal Self-Care Requisites - Universal self-care requisites are associated with life processes and the maintenance of the human structure and functioning integrity.

- 2. Developmental Self-Care Requisites Developmental self-care requisites are associated with developmental processes. They are generally derived from a condition or associated with an event.
- 3. Health Deviation Self-Care Requisites Health deviation self-care is required in conditions of illness, injury, or disease.

#### CONTENT COMPONENTS DEFINED

Person: Person incorporates the concepts of learner, self, individuals, families, groups, and communities. Human beings are unique individuals who have worth, rights, and inherent dignity. People have biological, psychological, social, spiritual, and cultural traits that influence their development. All people share similar hierarchical human needs from basic survival to self-actualization. Throughout the lifespan, individuals exist within a cultural and social milieu and encounter phenomena that have an impact on optimal health and development.

Environment: Environment is the sum total of all internal and external phenomena and processes that have an impact on people. Environment includes physical, psychological, social, spiritual, and cultural elements as well as historical, political, and economic conditions. Nursing is a resource in the environment that can influence the health of a person.

Health: Health represents a dynamic state of being resulting from interaction of person and environment. Health is actualized through competent personal care, goal directed behavior, and satisfying relationships with others. Adjustments are made as needed to maintain stability and structural integrity. A person's state of health can vary from optimum wellness to illness, disease, and dysfunction and changes throughout an individuals' lifespan.

Health Promotion: Relates to the actions taken to assist the patient to reach optimum level of health.

Health Maintenance: Relates to maintenance of the patient's optimum level of health.

Health Restoration: Relates to the nursing actions taken to restore a patient to an optimum level of health

Nursing: Nursing is a science and an art with the ultimate goal of providing safe, competent health care. The vocational nurse is an essential member of the interdisciplinary healthcare team. The practice of nursing includes health promotion across the life-span by using nursing

interventions to assist individuals, families, and groups to retain, restore, or maintain a maximum level of wellness. Nursing is practiced in an ever-changing variety of settings that includes, but is not limited to, acute care, rehabilitative care, ambulatory care, and the home, as well as other community-based sites. Nursing is an increasingly essential resource in improving the health of our community and nation.

Patient Centered Care: The vocational nurse provides evidence based nursing interventions as the core of nursing practice. Nursing interventions are those direct or indirect interactions that occur between a nurse and client in response to actual or potential health problems. Nursing interventions have cultural and ethnic relevance for the client and are carried out within the scope of the Vocational Nurse Practice Act. In clinical practice, nurses use the nursing process to interact with clients in achieving mutual goals. Nurses acquire and maintain current knowledge and are willing to participate in peer review and other activities that ensure quality of care. Nurses also communicate effectively with clients, families, and healthcare providers to promote a safe and effective quality care environment.

# INSTITUTIONAL APPROVAL

Meta Polytechnic is a private institution that has been granted approval to operate by the Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education (BPPE). Meta Polytechnic approval to operate as a private postsecondary institution in the state of California is based on the provisions of the Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians (BVNPT) located at 2535 Capitol Oaks Drive, Suite 205, Sacramento, CA 95833. BVNPT Phone: (916)263-7800.

The institution is a private institution, that is approved to operate by the bureau, and that approval to operate means compliance with state standards as set forth in the CEC and bureau, and that approval to operate means compliance with state standards as set forth in the CEC and 5, CCR. An institution may not imply that the Bureau endorses programs, or that Bureau approval means the institution exceeds minimum state standards.

#### **VOCATIONAL NURSING PROGRAM MONITORING**

Administrative Policies and Procedures

Meta Polytechnic will develop and implement written administrative and management policies to govern the administrative and management of the Vocational Nursing Program, the Director, and Instructors. Such policies shall be reviewed annually and revised as often as the institution determines necessary. A copy of the written policies shall be made available upon request to the BVNPT and BPPE.

Policies shall include but not be limited to:

- 1. Job descriptions detailing qualifications, duties, responsibilities, and limitations for the licensed nurse Program Director (RN) and the instructors.
- 2. An organizational chart showing the person in charge of the program, the lines of authority, responsibility, communication, staff assignments, and schedules.
- 3. The method of monitoring Instructors by the individual responsible for the training program.
- 4. The ratio of students to Instructor(s) for the clinical training, not to exceed a ratio of 15 students to 1 Instructor.
- 5. How student absenteeism and makeup classes will be handled.

# REQUIREMENTS FOR ELIGIBILITY FOR LICENSURE (CEC 94909(a)(6))

THE NCLEX-VN EXAM

The National Council Licensure Examination for Practical Nurses (Vocational Nurse in California) is administered by individual State Boards of Nursing. The NCLEX-VN is often referred to as "The Boards" or "State Boards." The NCLEX-VN has only one purpose: To determine if it is safe for you to begin practice as an entry-level practical/vocational nurse.

These boards have a mandate to protect the public from unsafe and ineffective nursing care, and each is responsible for regulating the practice of nursing in its respective state.

#### **FRAMEWORK**

The NCLEX-VN exam is organized according to the framework, "Meeting Client Needs." There are four major categories integrated:

- 1. Safe and Effective Care Environment
- 2. Health Promotion and Maintenance
- 3. Psychological Integrity
- 4. Physiological Integrity

# NUMBER OF QUESTIONS ON THE NCLEX-VN EXAM

Everyone answers a minimum of 85 questions to a maximum of 205 questions. Regardless of how many you answer, you will be given 25 experimental questions that do not count for or against you. The exam administrators use them to test for future questions on the exam. The exam is graded as "pass" / "fail".

# NCLEX-VN TIME LIMIT

There is no time limit for each individual question. You'll have a maximum of 5 hours to complete the exam, which includes a tutorial in the beginning. There are no mandatory breaks. However, there's an optional break after 2 hours of testing, and another optional break after an additional 90 minutes of testing.

# WHEN DOES THE NCLEX-VN EXAM END?

The NCLEX-VN exam ends when one of the following occurs:

- 1. You have demonstrated minimum competency and answered the minimum number of questions (85).
- 2. You have demonstrated a lack of minimum competency and answered the minimum number of questions (85).
- 3. You have answered the maximum number of questions (205).
- 4. You have used the maximum time allowed (5 hours).

#### HOW TO REGISTER FOR THE NCLEX VN

During Term 5 of the Vocational Nursing Program, the student will receive two applications: An application for licensure and an application for the NCLEX-PN Exam. On a predetermined date, the student will be required to submit the completed forms and the licensure fees to Meta Polytechnic.

# NCLEX-VN EXAM AND LICENSURE FEES

The cost to take the NCLEX-VN exam is \$300. Additional licensure fees and are determined by the Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians (BVNPT). Send your completed test application and fee to NCS Pearson. You can register by phone by calling: 866-49-NCLEX or online at vue.com/nclex.

# SCHEDULING YOUR NCLEX-VN EXAM

You'll receive a postcard acknowledging receipt of registration. You will not be able to schedule an appointment to take the exam until NCS Pearson sends you a document entitled "Authorization to Test" (ATT). On the ATT, you'll find your candidate number, the testing expiration date, as well as a list of test centers. At that point, just schedule your date at www.vue.com/nclex.

#### NCLEX-VN BACKGROUND CHECK

Applicants for licensure are required to be fingerprinted for purposes of conducting a criminal history record check. The fingerprints remain on file with the California Department of Justice, and that agency provides reports to the Board of any future convictions on an ongoing basis. (Authority: Section 144, Business and Professions Code) Two methods are available:

- 1. Live Scan
- 2. Manual Fingerprint Process

# LIVE SCAN PROCESS

If you are residing in or near California, you may obtain the triplicate form for Live Scan service from the Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians and take it to a Live Scan site along with your fee for processing. At the Live Scan site they will scan your fingerprints electronically and transmit them immediately for processing. After you have had your fingerprints scanned, be sure to attach the second copy of your Live Scan form to your licensing application packet when you mail it to the Board.

Visit https://oag.ca.gov/fingerprints/locations to locate Live Scan sites. Most local law enforcement agencies in California have Live Scan equipment. Hours of operation and fees vary, so please contact the Live Scan site directly for information.

Using Live Scan can help speed your licensure because the Board receives fingerprint results much quicker than through the manual card process. On average, Live Scan results take 1-2 weeks, while a manual fingerprint card can take 1-2 months. (Processing time at DOJ and FBI can vary.)

Print a copy of the completed Live Scan form and take the 3 requests to the Live Scan site with vour fee.

After your fingerprints are scanned:

- 1. 1st copy of form is kept by the Live Scan Operator
- 2. Retain a 2nd copy of the form for your records.
- 3. Attach 3rd copy of form to your licensing application packet and mail to the Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians.

# MANUAL FINGERPRINT PROCESS

To submit a manual fingerprint card, obtain the 8" x 8" fingerprint card from the Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians. Refer to your application instructions for detailed information on how to complete the card, get your fingerprints rolled, and mail them to the Board, along with your fingerprint fees. Please keep in mind that results from the manual card process take 1-2 months on average. (Processing times at DOJ and FBI can vary.)

# GOVERNING BOARD (5 C.C.R. §71150)

Gerald Guihama, RN MSN

Chief Operating Officer, Chief Operating Officer & Director of Nursing

As an entrepreneur who is passionate about nursing education, with a Masters of Science in Nursing Leadership and Management led Gerald Guihama, RN MSN, Founder and CEO of Meta Polytechnic, to create a nursing school of his own. In addition to CEO, he serves as the Director of Nursing for the Vocational Nursing Program with a primary goal of delivering a successful program at scale that improves the overall health in the communities served.

Stephanie O'Shea Guihama, RN, MSN, Ed, CNOR

Chief Academic Officer & Instructor

With a master's in nursing education, Stephanie O'Shea Guihama

is an adjunct faculty for the Vocational Nursing Program specializing in perioperative care. Her passion for nursing education emphasizes development of staff, program, curriculum and finding new ways to mentor and engage students.

Mariah Raizel Quillope, RN

Instructor

An Associate of Science in Nursing graduate of Kaplan College and former travel nurse led Mariah to Meta Polytechnic to serve as our instructor. She finds immense joy in sharing her knowledge with aspiring nursing students. She believes that teaching not only enhances her own skill but also empowers the next generation of nurses to provide exceptional patient care.

Michelle Lankford, RN MSN, Ed, CNOR

Instructor

A seasoned Nurse Educator at Kaiser Permanente San Diego Medical Center with master's in nursing education has led Michelle to serve as a member of the board and an adjunct vocational nursing instructor with Meta Polytechnic to consult with the nursing department instructors to support their professional growth as educators by arranging team-building exercises and educational seminars.

Ian McCracken, RN BSN

Instructor

A Bachelor of Science in nursing graduate of National University and former United States Marine led Ian to a board position with Meta Polytechnic to facilitate veteran student success in the nursing program while improving employment opportunities for veterans, and providing support services.

## RESOURCES

# LOCATION & CONTACT INFORMATION

Program: Vocational Nursing (VN)

Campus Location: Meta Polytechnic – 2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201 Chula Vista, CA 91915

Phone: (619) 679-2893

Website: www.MetaPolytechnic.com

Class/ theory sessions will be held at 2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201 Chula Vista, CA 91915.

The Chula Vista campus is approximately 2,000 sq ft and is equipped with a classroom and skills laboratory including hospital beds and simulated patient units.

#### **CAMPUS**

Meta Polytechnic is located at 2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201 Chula Vista, CA 91915 in the city of Chula Vista, of southern San Diego, California. Our Chula Vista campus is located in the South Bay about halfway (7.5 miles) between downtown San Diego and the United States/ Mexican Border, and is a cultural center that provides opportunities for adult learners of all ages, groups, genders, socioeconomic classes, demographics and will place a focus on individuals who are interested in a streamlined approach to education, with curricula emphasizing developing a particular skill set to prepare its graduates to begin a healthcare career in a region known to be an industry leader. The Academy has developed an excellent relationship with our clinical sites located but not limited to the city of Chula Vista, National City, La Mesa, El Cajon, Clairemont Mesa, and La Jolla. A sample of hospitals available to serve the county of San Diego include Paradise Valley Hospital, Sharp Healthcare, Scripps Health, Rady's Children's Hospital, Kaiser Permanente, and UCSD Medical Center.

#### **ADMISSIONS**

# **ADMISSION REQUIREMENTS**

Program: Vocational Nursing (VN)

Total Clock Hours (Theory/ Lab/ Clinical): 1,658 (5 Term Curriculum)

Total Instructional Weeks: 53 Credential Earned: Diploma

Campus Location: Meta Polytechnic – 2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201 Chula Vista, CA 91915

The admissions requirements, including minimum levels of prior education, preparation, or training;

- Applicants may be admitted provided that they are high school graduates, have a high school or equivalency diploma (GED). Applicants must submit copies of high school transcripts (With a minimum GPA of 2.5), proof of high school graduation, or proof of receipt of a GED prior to starting.
- Prospective students may be conditionally accepted contingent upon satisfaction of all admissions requirements and receipt of supporting documentation. Applicants under the age of 18 may be admitted provided that they will be 18 years old by the scheduled start date of their externship/clinical. A parent, legal guardian, or spouse of legal age is required to cosign the Enrollment Agreement.
  - 1. Personal Interview Meta Polytechnic requires a personal, on-campus interview with each applicant prior to acceptance into the Vocational Nursing Program. The Academy encourages parents or spouses to tour the academy. This gives applicants and their families the opportunity to see the campus's facilities and equipment and to ask specific questions relating to the Academy, the curriculum, and the career training being considered. The personal interview will be conducted with the candidate only. This gives the Academy the opportunity to meet prospective students and evaluate their qualifications and aptitude.
  - 2. Criminal Background Check It is Meta Polytechnic's policy to ensure that enrolling students are aware of the potential effect and consequences of past criminal behaviors. Externship/clinical sites, employers or state licensing agencies have requirements that could prevent a student from completing the program or finding employment as a Vocational Nurse. Consent to perform a criminal background check must be completed and received as part of the admissions process. Results will be evaluated immediately upon receipt, but no later than the add/drop period. Convictions, guilty pleas or non contendere pleas for certain drug-related. fraud-based, or other serious crimes will disqualify a prospective student from remaining actively enrolled: they will be unregistered from all courses and the Academy without incurring academic or financial penalty. Many states, employers, and agencies impose restrictions on the employment, registration, licensure, or certification of workers with certain criminal convictions. Facilities and institutions that accept Meta Polytechnic's students for clinical rotation and or externships, as well as potential employers, may require an additional criminal background check and may reject a student based on criteria different from those applied to the student

during the enrollment process. Some employers and agencies may require candidates to submit to a drug screening test. Students with criminal records that include misdemeanors or felonies or personal background issues such as bankruptcy might not be accepted by these agencies for externships, clinical assignments, or employment following completion of the program. Employment and externship decisions are outside the control of the Meta Polytechnic. All background checks are evaluated on a case by case basis at the discretion of the Director of Nursing.

- 3. Health Education Systems, Inc. Admission Assessment (HESI A2) The Health Education Systems, Inc. Admission Assessment (HESI A2) is a required admission component for the Meta Polytechnic Vocational Nursing Program. Applicants must complete the exam and score a 70 or above as part of the application process. HESI A2 scores taken within the last 12 months will be accepted.
- A health screening performed by a Physician (Physician or Nurse Practitioner), Immunization records, and the results of certain tests are required prior to starting the Licensed Vocational Nursing Program.
- Applicants must be able to read, speak, and write English. All applicants must complete financial arrangements prior to starting class. All applicants must successfully complete the applicable entrance assessment(s).
- Meta Polytechnic will admit a LIMITED number of students per cohort and will utilize a
  Multiple Criteria Selection (MCS) process for admission into the Vocational Nursing
  Program. The MCS process is a point-based system. The points earned from the criteria
  determine the candidates ranking in the selection process. Once the candidates are
  selected for admission, prospective students not selected will be required to reapply for
  the next available cohort.

If applicable, information regarding the ability-to-benefit examination as required by section 94904 of the Code.

• All Ability-to-Benefit (ATB) students are those who do not possess a high school diploma or GED may NOT apply for enrollment in the Vocational Nursing Program.

The types and amount of general education required.

 Applicants may be admitted provided that they are high school graduates, have a high school or equivalency diploma (GED). Applicants must submit copies of high school transcripts, proof of high school graduation, or proof of receipt of a GED prior to starting.

#### Statement of Nondiscrimination

No person shall be excluded from participation, denied any benefits, or subjected to any form of discrimination based on race, sex, religion, color, national origin, age, disability, or any other factor protected by law.

# **EQUIPMENT USED FOR INSTRUCTION**

- Drive Medical Hospital Bed (4)
- Drive Medical Overbed Table (4)
- Low-Fidelity Teaching Mannequin (4)
- Prestan Professional Adult CPR Training Manikin (4)
- Prestan Professional Infant CPR Training Manikin (3)
- WNL Products AED Defibrillator Practi-Trainer (4)
- 48"x36" Dry Erase Board
- Dectecto Weight Beam Eye-Level Physician Scale (1)
- Medication Cart
- Kendall Wall Cabinet 5Qt/ Sharps (1)
- Alpine Industries Hand Sanitizer Dispenser (1)
- Drive Medical Wheelchair (1)
- Drive Medical IV Pole (2)
- Kendall Kangaroo Enteral Feeding Pump (1)
- Alaris SE Volumetric Pump 7130 (2)
- Sequential Compression Device (1)
- Dual Head Stethoscope (10)
- Manual Sphygmomanometers (6)
- Temporal Thermometer (3)
- Digital Oximeter Fingertip (2)
- Glucoscan (3)
- Simple Face Mask
- Non rebreather face mask
- Nasal Cannula
- Catheters
- Nasogastric tubes
- 3cc, 5cc, 10cc syringes
- Injecti-pad (3)
- Elastic Stockings (4)
- Plastic Leg (1)
- Wash Cloths (17)
- Patient Gown (6)
- Basin (3)
- Emesis Basin (3)
- Toothbrush (3)
- Tooth paste (2)
- Dentures (1)
- Denture Container (1)
- PPE Gowns

- Feeding Tray (cup, food warmer, Bowl, Utensils)
- Alcohol wipes
- Gloves (small, medium, large, X-large)

# **Instructional Equipment**

- Anatomy Charts
- Glucometers
- Medication Carts
- Procedure Kits
- Skeleton
- Stethoscopes
- Wheelchair / Walker
- Anatomical Models
- Hospital Beds with Overbed and Side Tables
- Procedural Anatomical Mannequins
- Scale
- Sphygmomanometers
- Thermometers/Electronic/Tympanic

#### LIBRARY/ LEARNING RESOURCE CENTER

The Learning Resource Center (LRC), will provide a quiet area where students may refer to various publications, journals, technical manuals, and reference books. Students are allowed to check out books from the LRC for purposes of research, review, or report preparation. Books may be checked out with the library supervisor. Students are also able to complete homework assignments with the use of two online computers.

Students will be held responsible and accountable for books and other items belonging to the LRC. Once a book, or other item, is borrowed from the LRC by a student, it becomes the responsibility of the receiver (student) to maintain the integrity/ condition of the book and return the item within three business days (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays). Students who have checked out a book from the LRC will have three business days to use the item in its educational capacity. If the book is needed for longer than the three-day checkout, it may be rechecked out. If the book is then not returned within the three- day period, a charge of \$.50 per day will be assessed. If the student loses the book, the student will be responsible for paying the original list price for the lost book. If the student damages the book, the student can be charged a minimum of \$10, up to full, original list price, depending on the damage and ability to reuse the book.

Students are placed on Records Hold until all LRC materials are either returned or the replacement cost of any damaged or lost materials is paid.

Library		
Item / Textbook	Quantity	Use
Herlihy, B. (2022). The	1	Anatomy and Physiology
Human Body in Health and		
Illness (7 <sup>th</sup> ed.) St. Louis,		
MO: Elsevier.		
Cooper, K., & Gosnell, K.	1	Nursing Fundamentals
(2023). Foundations of		
Nursing (9th ed.). St. Louis,		
MO: Elsevier.		
Ogden, S. J., & Fluharity, L.	1	Dosage Calculation
K. (2022). Calculation of		
Drug Dosages: A Worktext		
(12th ed.). St. Louis, MO:		
Elsevier.		
Nix, S. (2022). Williams'	1	Nutrition
Basic Nutrition & Diet		
Therapy (16th ed.). St. Louis,		
MO. Elsevier.		

Lilley, L.L., Collins & S,	1	Pharmacology for Nurses
Snyder, J. (2022).		
Pharmacology And The		
Nursing Process (10 <sup>th</sup> ed.) St.		
Louis, MO: Elsevier.		
Leifer, G., & Fleck E. (2022).	1	Human Growth and Development
Growth and Development		
Across the Lifespan (3rd ed.).		
St. Louis, MO. Elsevier.		
Carroll, L. & Collier, J.,	1	NCLEX Preparatory
(2023). Success in Practical/		
Vocational Nursing (10th ed).		
St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.		

## ENTRANCE ASSESSMENT

Prospective students applying for admission must meet the assessment scores as follows:

Program	HESI
Vocational Nursing	70

Applicants may attempt the HESI entrance assessment two times. If the minimum score is not met, the applicant must wait six (6) months before retesting.

A United States government issued photo identification card is required for all entrance assessments.

Meta Polytechnic students are required to speak English when an instructional setting necessitates the use of English for educational or communication purposes. English language proficiency is documented by the admission interview and receipt of prior education documentation or the successful completion of the Health Education Systems, Inc. Admission Assessment (HESI A2) as stated in the admission process. (5, CCR §71810(b)(4))

All instruction is conducted in the English Language. (5, CCR §71810(b)(5))

#### Statement of Nondiscrimination

No person shall be excluded from participation, denied any benefits, or subjected to any form of discrimination based on race, sex, religion, color, national origin, age, disability, or any other factor protected by law.

# ACCEPTANCE BY THE SCHOOL

The Vocational Nursing Program seats are filled on a first-come-first served basis once all requirements have been fulfilled.

#### **ALTERNATES**

Depending on the circumstances, students may be conditionally accepted into the Vocational Nursing Program as an alternate student. Alternates are chosen based on their rank, enrollment date, and time.

# Alternate Students:

- A. Vocational Nursing program applicants are admitted as "Alternate Students" once enrollment capacity has been met. The number of alternate students admitted may not exceed 10% of the school's Boards-approved number of students per class.
- B. Prior to beginning the program, alternate students will be informed in writing of their alternate status and must sign and acknowledge the policy.
- C. An applicant can enter and remain in the program as an alternate until the clinical experience begins in the first term.
- D. If no students drop before the beginning of clinical experience, the alternate will not be allowed to remain in that class. The alternate's enrollment will be canceled, and all monies will be refunded. Alternates will be offered a guaranteed seat in the next available class.
- E. If the alternate student accepts a guaranteed seat in the next class, all term 1 coursework would need to be repeated.

Vocational nurses are projected to grow 6 percent from 2021 to 2031, about as fast as the average for all occupations. About 58,800 openings for licensed practical and licensed vocational nurses are projected each year, on average, over the decade. Many of those openings are expected to result from the need to replace workers who transfer to different occupations or exit the labor force, such as to retire. (Bls.gov)

U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. (2022, September 8). *Licensed practical and Licensed Vocational Nurses : Occupational Outlook Handbook*. U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. Retrieved October 18, 2022, from https://www.bls.gov/ooh/healthcare/licensed-practical-and-licensed-vocational-nurses.htm#tab-6

Meta Polytechnic plans to enroll 24 students per BVNPT § 2526(14) Number of Students approval granted on March 22,2022. Once a BVNPT board representative completes an inspection or review prior to graduation of the initial class with board approval, Meta Polytechnic intends to enroll 60 students in 2024 and 90 students in 2025.

# **SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER**

A social security number is required to obtain licensure in California. In preparation for application for Board of Nursing licensure. Applications to take the NCLEX-VN Examination for Vocational Nurse licensure are downloaded from the Board of Nursing website and submitted

prior to expected graduation. Students are responsible for the application fee and assisted with this process in their final course in the program by the campus Testing Coordinator.

#### DRUG SCREEN

ALL vocational nursing students will be required to complete a urine drug screen. THIS IS A HOSPITAL/HEALTH CARE AGENCY REQUIREMENT. Students will be given the information to obtain these requirements upon admission to the program. The Background Check is completed through American Data Bank (ADB). DO NOT COMPLETE THIS REQUIREMENT UNTIL YOU RECEIVE AN INVITATION TO START THE PROGRAM.

DO NOT DRINK MORE THAN 8 OUNCES OF LIQUIDS WITHIN 8 HOURS OF YOUR URINE DRUG SCREEN.

The day of your urine drug test, DO NOT drink more than 8 oz. of any liquid. If you drink an excessive amount of liquid prior to conducting your urine drug screen, the results will be diluted and/or altered and therefore incomplete. If your drug screen results do come back dilute, you will not be able to be placed in clinical settings therefore, you will be ineligible to enter the vocational nursing program.

Important: Any prior conviction of a misdemeanor or felony may influence eligibility for licensure as a Vocational Nurse. A flagged background check or drug screen may also prohibit participation in the nursing program due to the requirement for clinical experience. All flagged background checks and drug screens are reviewed by the clinical facility the student may be assigned to. The clinical facility makes the decision on whether or not to accept the student for clinical placement. A denial of clinical placement due to a flagged background check or drug screen can occur at any point in the vocational nursing program.

# READMISSION

Meta Polytechnic's policy to encourage previously enrolled students to return to school to complete their education. Students must meet all entrance requirements in place at the time of readmission. The reentry process requires review and approval of the student's financial status, financial eligibility (when applicable), completion of Enrollment Agreement, collection and review of official transcripts, as well as prior academic performance and any other documentation required by the program the student is reentering. Students may be required to demonstrate skill competency in order to reenter the program. Readmission is contingent upon availability of space and requires final approval of the Director of Nursing. Reentering students will be enrolled into the program curriculum in place at the time of reentry.

#### CREDIT FOR PREVIOUS TRAINING

Policy of Acceptance of Transfer Students and Credits

Acceptance of transfer students and credits is in compliance with the California Vocational Nursing Practice Act with Rules and Regulations (section 2535). Meta Polytechnic does not grant credits, but grants completed hours for theory and clinical instruction as required by the <a href="https://example.com/BVNPT">BVNPT</a>. Credit hours may be transferred from other programs. The Vocational Nursing program will accept transfer students and allow credit hours either at the beginning of the program or, if space allows mid-program under the following general guidelines:

#### General Guidelines

- 1. Credit hours will be granted only for previous education or experience completed within five years prior to admission into the Vocational Nursing program.
- 2. All students must meet all admission requirements for the Vocational Nursing program.
- 3. Forms for references and physical examinations may be obtained in the school office.
- 4. It is the applicant's responsibility to see that verification of past experience and duties performed are on file before any credit hours can be granted.
- 5. It is the applicant's responsibility to have official transcripts, showing content of courses and hours satisfactorily completed, submitted before credit hours can be granted.
- 6. All transcripts and forms, including the physical, must be completed at least one month before the student's entry date.
- 7. Copies of all tests and evaluations are retained in the applicant's file.
- 8. Transfer of academic credit for related units of study, may be granted if students are admitted to the program and will be determined by evaluation by the Director of Nursing.
- 9. If the course(s) is similar in character and objectives to the course(s) offered at the Meta Polytechnic, the student will receive credit for the course(s). Students may transfer clock or credit hours from another postsecondary school necessary to fulfill the requirements for graduation and will be determined by evaluation by the Director of Nursing.

# Specific Courses and Experiences

- Accredited Vocational Nursing or Practical Nursing Courses: Credit hours based on
  evaluation of transcripts by the faculty will be granted transfer students from other
  vocational nursing programs having similar courses of study. The applicant must have
  received passing scores and satisfactory clinical evaluations at the school where they
  previously attended.
- Accredited Registered Nursing Courses: Credit hours for nursing education and clinical
  experience, based on evaluation of transcripts by the Director of Nursing, will be granted
  to students seeking transfer from this type of program. The applicant must have received
  passing scores and a satisfactory evaluation in the clinical area in the school where they
  previously attended.
- 3. <u>Accredited Psychiatric Technician Courses</u>: Credit hours for nursing education and clinical experience will be granted based on evaluation of transcripts by the Director of Nursing. Applicants must have received passing scores and satisfactory clinical evaluations from this type of program.

- 4. <u>Armed Service Nursing Courses</u>: Credit hours may be granted to an applicant showing evidence of satisfactory completion of a basic or advanced course in nursing offered by any branch of the Armed Forces. The applicant must have received passing scores and a satisfactory evaluation in the clinical area.
- 5. <u>Nurse Assistant Training Program-</u> A monetary credit of \$200.00 dollars may be granted to an applicant showing evidence of satisfactory completion of an accredited Nurse Assistant Training Program. A monetary credit of \$1,000.00 dollars may be granted to an applicant with satisfactory completion of the Nurse Assistant Training Program at the Meta Polytechnic.
- 6. Previous Education/ Experience- Transfer credit will be granted upon passing the challenge examination to those applicants who have successfully completed courses at an accredited school, and which are comparable to the courses taught at the Meta Polytechnic's Vocational Nurse program. The challenge examination for theory courses will be instructor-developed tests. The tests will be similar in content and length to the final examination given to students enrolled in the course being challenged. Challenge examinations must be requested by the student six (6) weeks prior to the start of the semester in which the course is scheduled to be taught. The challenge examinations for laboratory proficiency will vary with the area being challenged. They will be designed to validate:
  - 1) a working understanding of the performance objectives for the subject matter being challenged;
  - 2) ability to assess client needs based on the diagnosis and other pertinent information; 3) ability to provide the diagnosis and other pertinent information;
  - 3) ability to provide appropriate client teaching given a pre- selected care-plan;
  - 4) ability to perform selected procedures in a simulated client care setting. Grading for challenge examinations will be exactly the same as for exams given to students enrolled in the program. The score of 75% is required for a "C" grade and will be the minimum score required for passing. Grades for challenges exams in nursing are recorded only if the student is successful. This is to ensure that, if an individual is not successful with the challenge, there is no penalty incurred. The unsuccessful student then may enroll in the course for credit and receive the grade earned. If the student is successful "credit by examination" rather than a grade is recorded on the College transcripts. Challenge examinations for both theory and laboratory/ clinical will be given one at a time according to curriculum sequence. The courses challenged for credit must have been completed within the past five (5) years.

# TRANSFERABILITY DISCLOSURE

# NOTICE CONCERNING TRANSFERABILITY OF CREDITS AND CREDENTIALS EARNED AT OUR INSTITUTION

The transferability of credits you earn at Meta Polytechnic is at the complete discretion of an institution to which you may seek to transfer. Acceptance of the diploma you earn in Meta Polytechnic is also at the complete discretion of the institution to which you may seek to transfer. If the diploma that you earn at this institution is not accepted at the institution to which you seek to transfer, you may be required to repeat some or all of your coursework at that institution. For this reason you should make certain that your attendance at this institution will meet your educational goals. This may include contacting an institution to which you may seek to transfer after attending Meta Polytechnic to determine if your credits or diploma will transfer."

# (CEC §94909(a)(15)

Meta Polytechnic is not approved by the U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (I.C.E.) to participate in Student and Exchange Visitor Program (SEVP) and is not authorized to issue I-20 visa, therefore this institution cannot accept applications from students from abroad who are on an F-1 or M-1 visa. This institution does not offer any visa services and will not vouch for a student status. (5, CCR §71810(b)(3))

# STUDENT'S RIGHT TO CANCEL

The student has the right to cancel the enrollment agreement and obtain a refund of charges paid through attendance at the first class session, or the seventh day after enrollment, whichever is later. A notice of cancellation for the current term or from the school shall be in writing and submitted to the school administrative office or via email. Cancellation is effective on the date written notice of cancellation is sent to the school administrative office at 2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201 Chula Vista, CA 91915. attention Admissions & Student Services Director or by email to <a href="mailto:admin@metapolytechnic.com">admin@metapolytechnic.com</a>. If the student has received federal student financial aid funds, the student is entitled to a refund of monies not paid from federal student financial aid program funds.

# WITHDRAWAL POLICY

A withdrawal is defined as terminating enrollment in the program after the cancellation period has expired. A withdrawal for the current term or from the school may be effectuated by the student's written notice or by the student's conduct, including, but not necessarily limited to, a student's lack of attendance. Withdrawals via written notice will be effective as of the date received by the institution and sent to the school administrative office at 2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201 Chula Vista, CA 91915. Attention Admissions & Student Services Director or by email to admin@metapolytechnic.com; withdrawals due to student's conduct, including lack of attendance, will be effective as of the last recorded date of attendance by the student.

#### REFUND POLICY

The institution shall issue a refund for unearned institutional charges if the student withdraws from the program during a period of attendance. The refund policy for students who have completed 60 percent or less of the period of attendance shall be a pro rata refund. A pro rata refund pursuant to section 94919(c) or 94920(d) or 94927 of the code shall be no less than the total amount owed by the student for the portion of the educational program provided subtracted from the amount paid by the student, calculated as follows:

The amount owed equals the daily charge for the program (total institutional charge, divided by the number of days or hours in the program), multiplied by the number of days the student attended, or was scheduled to attend, prior to withdrawal.

For purposes of determining a refund, a student shall be considered to have withdrawn from an educational program when he or she withdraws or is deemed withdrawn in accordance with the withdrawal policy stated in this institution's catalog.

The institution shall pay or credit refunds within 45 days of a student's cancellation or withdrawal.

If an institution has collected money from a student for transmittal on the student's behalf to a third party for a bond, library usage, or fees for a license, application, or examination and the institution has not paid the money to the third party at the time of the student's withdrawal or cancellation, the institution shall refund the money to the student within 45 days of the student's withdrawal or cancellation. If the student has received federal student financial aid funds, the student is entitled to a refund of monies not paid from federal student financial aid program funds. This institution shall refund any credit balance on the student's account within 45 days after the date of the student's completion of, or withdrawal from, the educational program in which the student was enrolled.

Meta Polytechnic will refund all monies paid to it in any of the following circumstances:

- 1. The school did not provide the prospective student with a copy of the student's valid enrollment agreement and a current catalog or bulletin:
- 2. The school cancels or discontinues the course of instruction in which the student has enrolled.

The Withdrawal Date for refund computation will be one of the following:

- 1. The date Withdrawal/Cancellation Form signed by Student.
- 2. The date of withdrawal for unsatisfactory progress.
- 3. The date of withdrawal for excessive absences will be the last date of attendance.

The refund shall be calculated as follows:

- Deduct a registration fee not to exceed \$250 from the total tuition charge.
- Divide this figure by the number of hours in the program.
- The quotient is the hourly charge for the program.
- The amount owed by the student for the purposes of calculating a refund is derived by mu ltiplying the total hours attended by the hourly charge for instruction plus the amount of t he registration fee specified.

#### FINANCIAL AID

Meta Polytechnic is a private institution approved to operate by the California Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education. Approval to operate means the institution is compliant with the minimum standards contained in the California Private Postsecondary Education Act of 2009 (as amended) and Division 7.5 of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations (CEC §94909(a)(2) and CEC §94897(1)(1)(2).

Meta Polytechnic is not accredited by an agency recognized by the United States Department of Education (USDE), and this Institution's students are therefore not eligible for federal financial aid programs.

Meta Polytechnic is not approved to participate in the Federal or State Student Aid programs. (5, CCR §71810(b)(6))

Meta Polytechnic does not participate in federal or state financial aid programs (CEC §94909(a)(10)).

#### STUDENT LOAN DISCLOSURE

If a student obtains a loan to pay for an educational program, the student will have the responsibility to repay the full amount of the loan plus interest, less the amount of any refund, and that, if the student has received federal student financial aid funds, the student is entitled to a refund of the moneys not paid from federal student financial aid program funds.

IF the student is eligible for a loan guaranteed by the federal or state government and the student defaults on the loan, both of the following may occur:

- 1. The federal or state government or a loan guarantee agency may take action against the student, including applying any income tax refund to which the person is entitled to reduce the balance owed on the loan.
- 2. The student may not be eligible for any other federal student financial aid at another institution or other government assistance until the loan is repaid. (CEC §94911(g)(1)(2))

# NOTICE

YOU MAY ASSERT AGAINST THE HOLDER OF THE PROMISSORY NOTE YOU SIGNED IN ORDER TO FINANCE THE COST OF THE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM ALL OF THE CLAIMS AND DEFENSES THAT YOU COULD ASSERT AGAINST THIS INSTITUTION, UP TO THE AMOUNT YOU HAVE ALREADY PAID UNDER THE PROMISSORY NOTE.

#### GUIDELINES AND POLICIES FOR ENROLLMENT IN CLINICAL AND THEORY

# DESCRIPTION OF EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

Meta Polytechnic Vocational Nursing Program

Campus Location: Meta Polytechnic – 2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201 Chula Vista, CA 91915

Total Clock Hours (Theory/ Lab/ Clinical): 1,658 (5 Term Curriculum)

Total Instructional Weeks: 53 Credential Earned: Diploma

The objective of the Vocational Nursing Program is to prepare the student with sufficient theoretical knowledge and specialized practical skills to qualify for an entry-level position as a member of the nursing staff in in a variety of health care settings, including hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, physicians' offices, clinics, correctional facilities and home health care agencies.

(CEC §71810(b)(8))

Below is the list of the employment positions determined to be within the field for which a student received education and training at the Detailed Occupation (six-digit) level. (5, CCR §74112 (d)(3))

Licensed Practical/Vocational Nurse Training - 51.3901

#### Term 1

Course	VN 100	
Code:	VN 100	
Course	Eundamentale of Nursing	
Title:	Fundamentals of Nursing	
1. Length of	Clock Hours: 258	
Course:		
2. Method	Theory: 126 Hours	
of Teaching:	Clinical: 132 hours	
3. Teaching	Lecture, discussion, small group participation; audio-visual; interactive	
Strategies:	learning.	
	Faculty: M. Quillope, RN	
4. Faculty:	Faculty Qualifications:	
	Current Active California Registered Nurse	
	<ul> <li>Associate of Science in Nursing – Kaplan College</li> </ul>	

	CIT 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
	Clinical Adjunct: I. McCracken, RN BSN		
	Faculty Qualifications:		
	Current Active California Registered Nurse		
	Bachelor's of Science in Nursing – National University		
	Clinical Adjunct: S. Guihama, RN MSN, Ed.		
	Faculty Qualifications:		
	Current Active California Registered Nurse		
	Master's of Science in Nursing – Western Governors University		
	Clinical Adjunct: M. Lankford, RN MSN, Ed.		
	Faculty Qualifications:		
	Current Active California Registered Nurse		
	Master's of Science in Nursing – Western Governors University		
	στουστού στο στουστού του στουστού στο για στουστού στο για στουστού στο για στουστού στο για στουστού στου για		
5. Office	2006 01 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2		
Locations:	2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 20, Chula Vista, CA 91915		
6. Office	Monday- 1:00PM- 4:00PM		
Hours:	Tuesday – Friday – 4:00PM – 6:00PM		
7. Phone			
Numbers:	(619) 679-2893		
8. Course			
Prerequisite	Admission to Vocational Nursing Program		
s:	1 - William Color to to to the color of the		
	This course covers orientation, Introduction to Vocational Nursing and Nursing		
	Fundamentals, pharmacology, and healthcare-related mathematical concepts.		
	The nursing profession including history, standards of practice, legal and ethical		
9. Course	issues, role of the vocational nurse, mental health, therapeutic communication,		
	cultural sensitivity, spiritual diversity, safety, and the nursing process is		
Description:			
	emphasized. Nursing Skills Lab and clinical practice provides the student with		
	the opportunity to learn and practice basic nursing principles related to meeting		
	the daily needs of clients.		
	Upon completion of this course, the student will be able to:		
	1. Distinguish fundamental concepts of nursing practice integral to the		
1	provision of safe, effective, individualized patient care to those with		
10. Course	predictable healthcare needs through supervised and directed scope of practice.		
Objectives:	2. Discuss how the practical/vocational nurse utilizes the physical and		
	mental status, needs and preferences of culturally, ethnically and		
	socially diverse patients and their families to assist in the development		
	of individual care plans.		

- 3. Assist in the implementation of teaching plans for patients and their families with well-defined health promotion needs across the lifespan.
- 4. Discuss how to communicate effectively with patients, their family members, and members of the interdisciplinary healthcare team to assist in the planning, delivery, and coordination of patient- centered care to assigned patients in a timely manner.
- 5. Describe the nursing process, evidenced based practices, advocacy, and therapeutic communication in caring for patients across the lifespan.
- 6. Identify the fundamentals of pharmacology, and medication dosages in relation to the nursing process.
- 7. Provide client care using universal precautions.
- 8. Use the recommendations for standard precautions from the Center for Disease Control, when providing care to clients.
- 9. Use aseptic techniques when providing care to clients.
- 10. Apply safety precautions in all client care and the clinical setting.
- 11. Demonstrate accurate assessment and documentation of vital signs.
- 12. Use the nursing process (gather data, refer to nursing diagnosis, plan, implement and evaluate) in all basic client care.
- 13. Demonstrate competence in procedures for basic client care.
- 14. Demonstrate the use and safety precautions of various restraints.
- 15. Demonstrate appropriate documentation with pertinent information.
- 16. Observe confidentiality in all areas of client care.
- 17. Provide pertinent client information and instructions relating to health promotion, care, and maintenance.
- 18. Apply computer skills in the health care setting.
- 19. Perform competently in cardiopulmonary resuscitation.
- 20. Identify activities that promote the development and practice of the practical/vocational nurse.
- 21. Discuss the practical/vocational nurses' responsibility and accountability for the quality of individualized client–centered care.
- 22. State the purpose of the Nurse Practice Act and State Board of Nursing and identify how the practical/vocational nurse functions within the legal scope of practice in various settings.
- 23. Discuss knowledge of the Nursing Practice Act as well as any other rules or regulations from any federal, state or local accreditation organization that emphasizes safety standards
- 24. Distinguish aspects of the plan of care for assigned patients within the legal, ethical, and regulatory parameters and in consideration of client factors.
- 25. Discuss the history and trends of nursing, quality improvement processes, and the scope of practice of multidisciplinary team members in relation to the practical/vocational nurse.

# 11. Required Texts/

- Cooper, K., & Gosnell, K. (2023). Foundations of Nursing (9th ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.
- Lilley, L.L., Collins & S, Snyder, J. (2022). Pharmacology And The Nursing Process (10<sup>th</sup> ed.) St. Louis, MO: Elsevier

Supplement al Reading	Ogden, S. J., & Fluharity, L. K. (2022). Calculation of Drug Dosages: A  Worldwit (12th ad.) St. Levis MO: Flavoier.	
12. Course	Worktext (12th ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.	
Requiremen	Students are expected to attend each class to maximize learning and to take written examinations at scheduled times. Students will participate in class	
ts:	through discussion and group	- · ·
13.	<u> </u>	
Academic	Dishonesty, plagiarism, copying and any other behavior that is contrary to	
Integrity:	school standards of behavior will not be tolerated. Any student found guilty of	
integrity.	such offenses will be given an "F" as a final course grade.	
	Paper, pencil testing and/or	DOINTS
14.	presentations and written	POINTS
Evaluation	assignments:	150/
Methods/	Quiz (3)	15%
Grading	Exam (2)	15%
Policy	Midterm (1):	25%
	Final (1):	30%
	TOTAL POINTS:	100%
	Grading Scale:	
	A = 90-100%	
	B = 80-89%	
	C = 75-79% (75% is a passing	ng grade for the course)
	Nursing Skills Lab and Clinical Practice I is evaluated based on skill competency and assessment skills on a PASS or FAIL basis.  *All students must pass the Dosage Calculation Quizzes/ Medication Math in order to establish competency. Competency will be measured by obtaining a minimum 90%. Students will be given two opportunities to take the quiz/exam with a minimum of 3 days between testing and evidence of remediation must be provided before the 2nd attempt. Failure of the medication math exam the third time constitutes a failure in the clinical course for that term. In this case, the student must withdraw (W) from the corresponding theory course, as theory and clinical must be taken concurrently. The student may not progress in the program until the clinical course is successfully passed.  Missed Exam Policy	
	<ul> <li>An absence categorized as excused absence only allows the student to make up an exam if the excused absence occurred on a day where an exam was administered.</li> <li>Exam(s) missed due to an excused absence must be made up on the first day of the return to school. The maximum exam grade allowed will be 75%.</li> <li>Exam(s) missed due to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No make-ups allowed.</li> </ul>	

	Missed Quiz Policy	
	<ul> <li>An absence categorized as excused absence only allows the student to make up a quiz if the excused absence occurred on a day where a quiz was administered.</li> <li>A missed quiz due to an excused absence must be made up on the first day of the return to school. The maximum quiz grade allowed will be 75%.</li> <li>A missed quiz due to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No make-ups allowed.</li> </ul>	
15. Attendance Policy	Refer to the Student Handbook for the VN attendance policy. Notify the Instructor of any absence or tardiness before class time if possible.	
16. Course Outline	Week 1 Theory – 20 Hours Skills Lab – 4 Hours	Foundations of Nursing  CH. 1The Evolution of Nursing  CH. 2 Legal and Ethical Aspects of Nursing  CH. 3 Documentation  CH. 4 Communication  CH. 5 Nursing Process and Critical Thinking  CH. 6 Cultural and Ethnic Considerations  CH. 7 Asepsis and Infection Control  Calculation of Drug Doses  Dosage Calculation and Medication Administration  Metric and Household Measurements  Skills Laboratory  Skill 7-1 Performing Hand Hygiene With Soap and Water  Skill 7-2 Gloving  Skill 7-3 Gowning for Isolation  Skill 7-4 Donning a Mask  Skill 7-5 Isolation Precautions  Skill 7-6 Surgical Hand Hygiene  Skill 7-7 Preparing a Sterile Field  Skill 7-8 Donning a Sterile Gown  Skill 7-9 Performing Open Sterile Gloving  Skill 7-10 Preparing for Disinfection and Sterilization
	Week 2 Theory – 20 Hours Skills Lab – 8 Hours	Foundations of Nursing  - CH. 8 Body Mechanics and Patient Mobility  - CH. 9 Hygiene and Care of the Patient's Environment

Quiz # 1	- CH. 10 Safety
Foundations of Nursing	- CH.11 Admission, Transfer, and
CH. 1-6	Discharge
Сп. 1-0	Dosage Calculation
	- CH 7. Calculations Used in Patient
	Assessments
	- CH. 8 Safety in Medication
	Administration
	- CH. 9 Interpretation of the Licensed
	Prescriber's Orders
	- CH. 10 Reading Medication Labels
	Skills Laboratory
	- Skill 8-1 Positioning Patients
	- Skill 8-2 Performing Range-of-Motion
	Exercises
	- Skill 8-3 Moving the Patient
	- Skill 8-4 Using Lifts for Moving Patients
	- Skill 9-1 Bathing the Patient and
	Administering a Back Rub
	- Skill 9-2 Applying a Hot, Moist Compress
	to an Open Wound
	- Skill 9-3 Administering Oral Hygiene
	- Skill 9-4 Care of the hair, Nails, and feet
	- Skill 9-5 Perineal Care: Male and Female
	and the Catheterized Patient
	- Skill 9-6 Bed Making
	- Skill 9-7 Positioning the Bedpan
	- Skill 10-1 Applying Safety Reminder
	Devices
	- Skill 11-1 Admitting a Patient
	- Skill 11-2 Transferring a Patient
	- Skill 11-3 Discharging a Patient
	- Skill 18-1 Measuring Intake and Output
	- Skill 19-3 Assisting Patients with Eating Foundations of Nursing
Week 3	- CH. 12 Vital Signs
Theory – 8 Hours	- CH. 13 Physical Assessment
Skills Lab - 16 Hours	Skills Laboratory
	- Skill 12-1 Measuring Body Temperature
Exam #1	- Skill 12-2 Obtaining a Pulse Rate
	- Skill 12-3 Obtaining an Apical Pulse Rate
Foundations of Nursing	<ul><li>Skill 12-4 Obtaining a Respiratory Rate</li><li>Skill 12-5 Obtaining a Blood Pressure</li></ul>
CH. 1-11	Reading
	- Skill 12-6 Measuring Height and Weight
	- Skin 12-0 Measuring Height and Weight

	Foundations of Nursing
Week 4 Theory – 16 Hours Skills Lab – 8 Hours	<ul> <li>CH. 14 Oxygenation</li> <li>CH. 15 Elimination and Gastric Intubation</li> <li>Dosage Calculation</li> <li>CH. 11 Oral Dosages</li> <li>CH. 12 Parenteral Dosages</li> <li>Skills Laboratory</li> </ul>
Quiz #2 Dosage Calculation CH. 7-10	<ul> <li>Skill 14-1 Oxygen Administration</li> <li>Skill 14-2 Tracheostomy Suctioning and Care</li> <li>Skill 14-3 Care of a Cuffed Tracheostomy Tube</li> <li>Skill 14-4 Care of the Patient with a T-Tube or Tracheostomy Collar</li> <li>Skill 14-5 Clearing the Airway</li> </ul>
	Foundations of Nursing
	- CH. 16 Care of Patients Experiencing Urgent Alterations in Health Dosage Calculation
Week 5 Theory – 16 Hours Skills Lab – 8 Hours  MIDTERM Foundations of Nursing CH. 12-15	<ul> <li>CH. 13 Dosages Measured in Units</li> <li>CH. 14 Reconstitution of Medications</li> <li>CH. 15.1 Intravenous Flow Rates</li> <li>CH. 15.2 Milliliters per Hour</li> <li>CH. 16 Intravenous Flow Rates for Dosages Measured in Units</li> <li>Skills Laboratory</li> <li>Skill 16-1 Applying a Tourniquet</li> <li>Skill 16-2 Applying an Arm Sling with a Triangular (Sling and Swathe) Bandage</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Skill 16-3 Moving the Victim with a Suspected Spinal Cord Injury</li> <li>Skill 22-8 Applying a Bandage</li> <li>Skill 22-9 Applying a Binder, Arm Sling, and T-Binder</li> </ul>
Week 6 Theory – 16 Hours Skills Lab – 8 Hours  Quiz #3 Dosage Calculation CH.11-12	Dosage Calculation  - CH.13 Dosages Measured in Units  - CH. 14 Reconstitution of Medications  - CH. 15.1Intravenous Flow Rates  - CH.15.2 Milliliters per Hour  - CH.16.1 Intravenous Flow Rates for Dosages Measured in Units  Pharmacology and the Nursing Process  - CH.1 The Nursing Process and Drug  Therapy  - CH. 2 Pharmacologic Principles

- CH. 3 Lifespan Considerations - CH. 4 Cultural, Legal, and Ethical Considerations Skills Laboratory	
Considerations	
Skills Edociatory	
Danfarman and Charlet 17.1	
- Performance Checklist 17-1	1
Administering Tablets, Pills, and Ca	psules
- Performance Checklist 17-2	
Administering Liquid Medications	
- Performance Checklist 17-3	
Administering Medications Through	1
Nasogastric Tubing	
- Performance Checklist 17-4	
Administering Rectal Suppositories	
- Skill 17-5 Performing a Vaginal Irrig	gation
or Douche	
- Performance Checklist 17-6 Applying	ng
Topical Agents	
- Performance Checklist 17-7	
Administering Eyedrops and Eye	
Ointments	
- Performance Checklist 17-8	
Administering Eardrops	
- Performance Checklist 17-9	
Administering Nose Drops	
- Performance Checklist 17-10	
Administering Nasal Sprays	
- Skill 17-11 Eye Irrigation	
- Skill 17-14 Performing a Nasal Irrig	ation
- Performance Checklist 17-15	
Administering Metered-Dose Inhale	r
- Performance Checklist 17-16	
Administering Sublingual Medication	ons
- Performance Checklist 17-17	
Administering Buccal Medications	
Pharmacology and the Nursing Process	
Week 7 - CH. 5 Medication Errors: Preventing	g and
I Responding	
Theory – 20 Hours - CH. 6 Patient Education and Drug	
Clinical – 8 Hours Therapy	
- CH. 7 Over-the-Counter Drugs and	
VN 102 FINAL Herbal and Dietary Supplements	
4 Hours - CH.8 Basic Principles of Genetic	
Inheritance	
- CH. 9 Photo Atlas of Drug Adminis	tration
Skills Laboratory	

Week 8  Exam # 3  Dosage Calculation CH.13-16 Pharmacology CH. 1-11	<ul> <li>Skill 17-18 Preparing Parenteral         Medications</li> <li>Performance Checklist 17-19 Giving an         Intramuscular Injection</li> <li>Performance Checklist 17-20 Giving a         Z-Track Injection</li> <li>Performance Checklist 17-21 Giving an         Intradermal Injection</li> <li>Performance Checklist 17-22 Giving a         Subcutaneous Injection</li> <li>Foundations of Nursing         <ul> <li>CH. 16 Care of Patients Experiencing</li></ul></li></ul>
Week 9	Pharmacology and the Nursing Process  - CH. 10 Analgesic Drugs - CH. 11 General and Local Anesthetics Skills Laboratory Skills Competency Check Off – 8 Hours  - Skill 7-1 Performing Hand Hygiene With Soap and Water - Skill 7-2 Gloving - Skill 7-3 Gowning for Isolation - Skill 7-4 Donning a Mask - Skill 7-5 Isolation Precautions - Skill 7-6 Surgical Hand Hygiene - Skill 7-7 Preparing a Sterile Field - Skill 7-8 Donning a Sterile Gown - Skill 7-9 Performing Open Sterile Gloving - Skill 7-10 Preparing for Disinfection and Sterilization - Skill 8-1 Positioning Patients - Skill 8-2 Performing Range-of-Motion Exercises - Skill 8-3 Moving the Patient Skills Competency Check Off – 8 Hours - Skill 14-1 Oxygen Administration - Skill 15 – 2 Performing Routine Catheter Care - Skill 15-6 Nasogastric Tube Irrigation

	<ul> <li>Skill 15-10 Administering an Enema</li> <li>Performance Checklist 17-1         Administering Tablets, Pills, and Capsules     </li> <li>Performance Checklist 17-2         Administering Liquid Medications     </li> <li>Performance Checklist 17-3         Administering Medications Through Nasogastric Tubing     </li> <li>Performance Checklist 17-4</li> </ul>
	Administering Rectal Suppositories Clinical – 8 Hours: Site TBD
Week 10  VN 100 FINAL  CUMULATIVE	Skills Laboratory Skills Competency Check Off – 8 Hours  - Performance Checklist 17-6 Applying Topical Agents - Performance Checklist 17-7 Administering Eyedrops and Eye Ointments - Performance Checklist 17-8 Administering Eardrops - Performance Checklist 17-9 Administering Nose Drops - Performance Checklist 17-10 Administering Nasal Sprays - Skill 17-18 Preparing Parenteral Medications - Performance Checklist 17-19 Giving an Intramuscular Injection - Performance Checklist 17-20 Giving a Z-Track Injection - Performance Checklist 17-21 Giving an Intradermal Injection - Performance Checklist 17-22 Giving a Subcutaneous Injection

Course	VN 102	
Code:	VIV 102	
Course	Fundamentals of Anatomy & Physiology	
Title:	Fundamentals of Anatomy & Physiology	
1. Length of	Clock Hours: 52	
Course:	Clock Hours. 32	

2. Method	Theory: 52 hours		
of Teaching:	· ·		
3. Teaching	Lecture, discussion, small group participation; audio-visual; interactive		
Strategies:	learning.		
	Faculty: M. Quillope, RN		
	Faculty Qualifications:		
	Current Active California Registered Nurse		
4. Faculty:	Associate of Science in Nursing – Kaplan College		
1. I dealty.	Clinical Adjunct: I. McCracken, RN BSN		
	Faculty Qualifications:		
	Current Active California Registered Nurse		
	Bachelor's of Science in Nursing – National University		
5. Office	2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201, Chula Vista, CA 91915		
Locations:	2000 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201, Chuia Vista, CA 71713		
6. Office	Monday- 1:00PM- 4:00PM		
Hours:	Tuesday – Friday – 4:00PM – 6:00PM		
7. Phone	(619) 679-2893		
Numbers:	(017) 077 2073		
8. Course			
Prerequisite	Admission to Practical Nursing Program		
s:			
	This course introduces the student to the structure and function of the body.		
9. Course	Directions, geometric planes and cavities of the body are presented. Cells,		
Description:	tissues, organs and systems are discussed. The major organs of each system and		
	how they relate to the overall status of the body are covered.		
	Upon completion of this course, the student will be able to:		
	Distinguish between anatomy and physiology.  List the major parts of a sell.		
	<ul> <li>List the major parts of a cell.</li> <li>Describe types of tissues and membranes.</li> </ul>		
10. Course	<ul> <li>Identify the structural units of the human body.</li> </ul>		
Objectives:	<ul> <li>Identify the structural time of the human body.</li> <li>Identify location, direction, planes, and cavities of the human body.</li> </ul>		
-	• Describe the structure and normal function of the systems of the body:		
	Integumentary, Respiratory, Cardiovascular, Musculoskeletal,		
	Neurosensory, Endocrine, Gastrointestinal, Genito-Urinary and		
11.	Reproductive.		
Required	415		
Texts/	• Herlihy, B. (2022). The Human Body in Health and Illness (7 <sup>th</sup> ed.) St		
Supplement	Louis, MO: Elsevier.		
al Reading			

12. Course	Students are expected to attend	each class to maximize learning and to take	
Requiremen	Students are expected to attend each class to maximize learning and to take written examinations at scheduled times. Students will participate in class		
ts:	1 1		
13.	through discussion and group projects.  Dishonesty, plagiarism, copying and any other behavior that is contrary to		
Academic			
	school standards of behavior will not be tolerated. Any student found guilty of		
Integrity:	such offenses will be given an "	r as a final course grade.	
	Paper, pencil testing and/or	DODITE	
14.	presentations and written	POINTS	
Evaluation	assignments:		
Methods/	Quizzes (3):	30%	
Grading	Exams (2):	30%	
Policy	Final:	40%	
	TOTAL POINTS:	100%	
	Grading Scale:		
	A = 90-100%		
	B = 80-89%		
	C = 75-79% (75% is a passing §	grade for the course)	
	Missed Exam Policy		
<ul> <li>An absence categorized as excused absence only allows the make up an exam if the excused absence occurred on a date exam was administered.</li> <li>Exam(s) missed due to an excused absence must be made day of the return to school. The maximum exam grade allowed.</li> <li>Exam(s) missed due to an unexcused absence will result in make-ups allowed.</li> </ul>		excused absence occurred on a day where an an excused absence must be made up on the first pol. The maximum exam grade allowed will be	
	<ul> <li>Missed Quiz Policy</li> <li>An absence categorized as excused absence only allows the student to make up a quiz if the excused absence occurred on a day where a quiz was administered.</li> <li>A missed quiz due to an excused absence must be made up on the first day of the return to school. The maximum quiz grade allowed will be 75%.</li> <li>A missed quiz due to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No make-ups allowed.</li> </ul>		
15. Attendance Policy	Refer to the Student Handbook for the VN attendance policy. Notify the Instructor of any absence or tardiness before class time if possible.		
16. Course Outline	Week 1 Hours - 8	CH. 1 - Introduction to The Human Body CH. 2 - Basic Chemistry CH. 3 - Cells	

	CH. 4 - Cell Metabolism
	CH. 5 - Microbiology Basics
	CH. 6 - Tissues & Membranes
	CH. 7 - Integumentary System and Body
	Temperature
	CH. 8 - Skeletal System
Week 2	CH. 9 - Muscular System
Hours - 8	CH. 10 - Nervous System: Nervous Tissue and
	Brain
Quiz #1	CH. 11 - Nervous System: Spinal Cord and
CH. 1-6	Peripheral Nerves
	CH. 12 - Autonomic Nervous System
	CH. 13 - Sensory System
	CH. 14 - Endocrine System
W7 1 2	CH. 15 - Functions and Composition of Blood
Week 3	CH. 16 - Anatomy of the Heart
Hours - 8	CH. 17 - Function of the Heart
F //1	CH. 18 - Anatomy of the Blood vessels and
Exam #1	Special Circulations
CH. 1-14	CH. 19 - Functions of the Blood Vessels
Week 4	
Hours - 8	CH 20 Lymphotic Systems
	CH. 20 - Lymphatic Systems
Quiz #2	CH. 21 - Immune System
CH.15-19	
Week 5	
Hours – 8	CH. 22 - Respiratory System
	CH. 23 - Digestive System
Exam #2	CH. 24 - Urinary System
CH. 15-21	
Week 6	CH. 25 - Water, Electrolyte, and Acid-Base
Hours - 8	Balance
	CH. 26 - Reproductive Systems
Quiz #3	CH. 27 - Human Development and Heredity
CH. 22-24	21. 27 Trainan Development and Herearty
Week 7	
Hours – 4	
Einel E	
Final Examination	
Cumulative	

Term 2			
Course	VN 200		
Code:			
Course	Medical Surgical Nursing II		
Title:			
1. Length of	Clock Hours: 314		
Course:			
2. Method	Theory: 130 Hours		
of Teaching:	Clinical: 184 hours		
3. Teaching	Lecture, discussion, small group participation; audio-visual; interactive		
Strategies:	learning.		
	Faculty: M. Quillope, RN		
	Faculty Qualifications:		
	Current Active California Registered Nurse		
	Associate of Science in Nursing – Kaplan College		
	Clinical Adjunct: I. McCracken, PN PSN		
	Clinical Adjunct: I. McCracken, RN BSN Faculty Qualifications:		
	Current Active California Registered Nurse		
	Bachelor's of Science in Nursing – National University		
4. Faculty:	Bachelor's or Science in Truising Translate Oniversity		
1. I dealty.	Clinical Adjunct: S. Guihama, RN MSN, Ed.		
	Faculty Qualifications:		
	Current Active California Registered Nurse		
	Master's of Science in Nursing – Western Governors University		
	Clinical Adjunct: M. Lankford, RN MSN, Ed.		
	Faculty Qualifications:		
	Current Active California Registered Nurse		
	Master's of Science in Nursing – Western Governors University		
5. Office			
Locations:	2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201, Chula Vista, CA 91915		
6. Office	Monday- 1:00PM- 4:00PM		
Hours:	Tuesday – Friday – 4:00PM – 6:00PM		
7. Phone	(619) 679-2893		
Numbers:			
8. Course			
Prerequisite	Admission to Practical Nursing Program		
s:			
9. Course	This course emphasizes the common disease processes, treatments, and		
Description:	pharmacological agents used for disorders of the blood, lymphatic,		
-	· -		

	cardiovascular, and respiratory system. Lifespan development and mental health care of adults is also discussed. Using the nursing process, components of the head-to-toe data collection will be used to formulate plans of care. The student will apply knowledge learned in the classroom, the skills laboratory and in clinical settings with related client assignments. Clinical learning experiences provide opportunity to apply theoretical concepts, promote client centered health and wellness, and implement safe care to clients in a variety of settings across the lifespan.
	Upon completion of this course, the student will be able to:
10. Course Objectives:	<ol> <li>Analyze the components of the head-to-toe data-gathering process, to assist in the formulation of goals and outcomes to reduce patient risk.</li> <li>Describe an impaired nurse and programs for impaired nurses, as well as mandatory reporting requirements of the Nurse Practice Act.</li> <li>Establish psychosocial, physiological integrity and nutritional concepts necessary in providing multidisciplinary, client centered care.</li> <li>Discuss strategies that provide a safe, culturally sensitive, and client-centered care environment for the promotion, education and maintenance of wellness across the lifespan.</li> <li>Identify pathophysiology, common diagnostic procedures, treatments, client family teaching for all integumentary disorders.</li> <li>Discuss the basic principles of growth &amp; development, Healthy People 2020, and mental health disorders.</li> <li>Identify activities that promote the development and practice of the practical/vocational nurse.</li> <li>Discuss the practical/vocational nurses' responsibility and accountability for the quality of individualized client—centered care.</li> <li>State the purpose of the Nurse Practice Act and State Board of Nursing and identify how the practical/vocational nurse functions within the legal scope of practice in various settings.</li> <li>Discuss knowledge of the Nursing Practice Act as well as any other rules or regulations from any federal, state or local accreditation organization that emphasizes safety standards</li> <li>Distinguish aspects of the plan of care for assigned patients within the legal, ethical, and regulatory parameters and in consideration of client factors.</li> <li>Discuss the history and trends of nursing, quality improvement processes, and the scope of practice of multidisciplinary team members in relation to the practical/vocational nurse.</li> <li>Discuss the history and trends of nursing, quality improvement processes, and the scope of practice of multidisciplinary team member</li></ol>
11.	• Cooper, K., & Gosnell, K. (2023). Foundations of Nursing (9th ed.). St.
Required	Louis, MO: Elsevier.

Texts/	Ogden, S. J., & Fluharity, L. K. (2022). Calculation of Drug Dosages: A		
Supplement	Worktext (12th ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.		
al Reading	• Nix, S. (2022). Williams' Basic Nutrition & Diet Therapy (16th ed.). St.		
	Louis, MO. Elsevier.		
	• Lilley, L.L., Collins & S, Snyder, J. (2022). Pharmacology And The		
	Nursing Process (10 <sup>th</sup> ed.) St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.		
	• Leifer, G., & Fleck E. (2022). Growth and Development Across the		
	Lifespan (3rd ed.). St. Louis, MO. Elsevier.		
12. Course	Students are expected to a	ttend each class to maximize learning and to take	
Requiremen	written examinations at sc	cheduled times. Students will participate in class	
ts:	through discussion and gr	oup projects.	
13.	Dishonesty, plagiarism, co	opying and any other behavior that is contrary to	
Academic	school standards of behav	ior will not be tolerated. Any student found guilty of	
Integrity:	such offenses will be give	n an "F" as a final course grade.	
	Paper, pencil testing		
1.4	and/or presentations and	POINTS	
14.	written assignments:		
Evaluation	Quiz (3):	15%	
Methods/	Exam (2):	15%	
Grading Policy	Midterm (1):	25%	
Toney	Final (1):	30%	
	TOTAL POINTS:	100%	
	Grading Scale:		
	A = 90-100%		
	B = 80-89%		
	C = 75-79% (75% is a passing grade for the course)		
	Nursing Skills Lab and Clinical Practice I is evaluated based on skill competency and assessment skills on a PASS or FAIL basis.  *All students must pass the Dosage Calculation Quizzes/ Medication Math in order to establish competency. Competency will be measured by obtaining a minimum 90%. Students will be given two opportunities to take the quiz/exam with a minimum of 3 days between testing and evidence of remediation must be provided before the 2nd attempt. Failure of the medication math exam the third time constitutes a failure in the clinical course for that term. In this case, the student must withdraw (W) from the corresponding theory course, as theory and clinical must be taken concurrently. The student may not progress in the		
	program until the clinical course is successfully passed.  Missed Evan Policy		
	Missed Exam Policy		

	<ul> <li>An absence categorized as excused absence only allows the student to make up an exam if the excused absence occurred on a day where an exam was administered.</li> <li>Exam(s) missed due to an excused absence must be made up on the first day of the return to school. The maximum exam grade allowed will be 75%.</li> <li>Exam(s) missed due to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No make-ups allowed.</li> <li>Missed Quiz Policy</li> <li>An absence categorized as excused absence only allows the student to make up a quiz if the excused absence occurred on a day where a quiz was administered.</li> <li>A missed quiz due to an excused absence must be made up on the first day of the return to school. The maximum quiz grade allowed will be 75%.</li> <li>A missed quiz due to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No</li> </ul>	
15. Attendance Policy	make-ups allowed.  Refer to the Student Handbook for the VN attendance policy. Notify the Instructor of any absence or tardiness before class time if possible.	
Dosage Calca Quiz	Week 1  Dosage Calculation  Quiz	<ul> <li>Medical Surgical Nursing</li> <li>CH. 47 Care of the Patient With a Blood or Lymphatic Disorder</li> <li>CH. 48 Care of the Patient with a Cardiovascular or a Peripheral Vascular Disorder</li> <li>Pharmacology</li> <li>CH. 54 Anemia Drugs</li> <li>CH. 26 Coagulation Modifier Drugs</li> <li>CH. 27 Antilipemic Drugs</li> <li>Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD</li> </ul>
	Week 2	Medical Surgical Nursing  - CH. 48 Care of the Patient With a Cardiovascular or a Peripheral Vascular Disorder  Pharmacology  - CH. 23 Antianginal Drugs  - CH. 24 Heart Failure Drugs  - CH. 25 Antidysrhythmic Drugs  - CH. 28 Diuretic Drugs  Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD
	Week 3	Medical Surgical Nursing

	· // 1	OH 40 C Cd D C WEd
Medica No C Pharr	uiz # 1 al Surgical ursing H. 47 nacology 54, 26,27	<ul> <li>CH. 48 Care of the Patient With a         Cardiovascular or a Peripheral Vascular         Disorder</li> <li>CH. 49 Care of the Patient With a         Respiratory Disorder</li> <li>Pharmacology</li> <li>CH. 22 Antihypertensive Drugs</li> <li>CH. 36 Antihistamines, Decongestants,         Antitussives, and Expectorants</li> <li>Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD</li> </ul>
W	/eek 4	Medical Surgical Nursing - CH. 49 Care of the Patient With a Respiratory Disorder Pharmacology
Medica No CH Pharr	am # 1 al Surgical ursing 1. 47-48 macology 2-28, 36, 54	<ul> <li>CH. 41 Antitubercular Drugs</li> <li>Skills Laboratory</li> <li>Skill 14-1 Oxygen Administration</li> <li>Skill 14-2 Tracheostomy Suctioning and Care</li> <li>Skill 14-3 Care of a Cuffed Tracheostomy Tube</li> <li>Skill 14-4 Care of the Patient with a T-Tube or Tracheostomy Collar</li> <li>Skill 14-5 Clearing the Airway</li> <li>Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD</li> </ul>
Qı Pharr	Veek 5 uiz # 2 macology H. 41	<ul> <li>Medical Surgical Nursing</li> <li>CH. 49 Care of the Patient with a Respiratory Disorder</li> <li>Pharmacology</li> <li>CH. 37 Respiratory Drugs</li> <li>Skills Laboratory</li> <li>Skills Competency Checkoff</li> <li>Skill 14-1 Oxygen Administration</li> <li>Skill 14-2 Tracheostomy Suctioning and Care</li> <li>Skill 14-3 Care of a Cuffed Tracheostomy Tube</li> <li>Skill 14-4 Care of the Patient with a T-Tube or Tracheostomy Collar</li> <li>Skill 14-5 Clearing the Airway</li> <li>Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD</li> </ul>
W	Veek 6	Medical Surgical Nursing - CH. 24 Lifespan Development
M	idterm	- CH. 25 Loss, Grief, Dying, and Death

Madical Surgical	Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD
Medical Surgical	Cimical – 10 flouis. Site 1DD
Nursing	
CH. 49	
Pharmacology	
CH. 37 & 41	
Week 7	Medical Surgical Nursing
	- CH. 33 Health Promotion and Care of the
Quiz # 3	Older Adult
Medical Surgical	Mental Health Nursing
Nursing	- CH. 34 Concepts of Mental Health
CH. 24-25	Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD
Week 8	
Exam #2 Medical Surgical Nursing CH.33 Mental Health Nursing CH. 34	<ul> <li>Mental Health Nursing</li> <li>CH. 35 Care of the Patient With a Psychiatric Disorder</li> <li>Pharmacology</li> <li>CH.16 Psychotherapeutic Drugs</li> <li>Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD</li> </ul>
Week 9	Mental Health Nursing  - CH. 36 Care of the Patient with an Addictive Personality  Pharmacology  - CH. 12 Central Nervous System Depressants and Muscle Relaxants  - CH. 13 Central Nervous System Stimulants and Related Drugs  - CH. 17 Substance Use Disorder  Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD
Week 10	
VN 200 FINAL	Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD
CUMULATIVE	

Course		
Code:	VN 300	
Course		
Title:	Medical Surgical Nursing III	
1. Length of		
Course:	Clock Hours: 340	
2. Method	Theory: 132 Hours	
of Teaching:	Clinical: 208 Hours	
3. Teaching	Lecture, discussion, small group participation; audio-visual; interactive	
Strategies:	learning.	
	Faculty: M. Quillope, RN	
	Faculty Qualifications:	
	Current Active California Registered Nurse	
	Associate of Science in Nursing – Kaplan College	
	Clinical Adianata I McConslana DN DCN	
	Clinical Adjunct: I. McCracken, RN BSN	
	Faculty Qualifications:	
	Current Active California Registered Nurse     Pachalogia of Science in Nursing Metional University	
4. Faculty:	Bachelor's of Science in Nursing – National University	
4. Paculty.	Clinical Adjunct: S. Guihama, RN MSN, Ed.	
	Faculty Qualifications:	
	Current Active California Registered Nurse	
	Master's of Science in Nursing – Western Governors University	
	and the second of the second o	
	Clinical Adjunct: M. Lankford, RN MSN, Ed.	
	Faculty Qualifications:	
	Current Active California Registered Nurse	
	Master's of Science in Nursing – Western Governors University	
5. Office	2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201 Chula Vista, CA 91915	
Locations:	·	
6. Office	Monday- 1:00PM- 4:00PM	
Hours:	Tuesday – Friday – 4:00PM – 6:00PM	
7. Phone	(619) 679-2893	
Numbers:	(017) 017 2075	
8. Course		
Prerequisite	Admission to Practical Nursing Program	
s:		
9. Course	This course emphasizes the common disease processes, treatments, and	
Description:	pharmacological agents used for disorders of the integumentary, genitourinary,	

	and musculoskeletal systems. Nutritional concepts, and care of the surgical patient is also discussed. Using the nursing process, components of the head-to-toe data collection will be used to formulate plans of care. The student will apply knowledge learned in the classroom, the skills laboratory and in clinical settings with related client assignments. Clinical learning experiences provide opportunity to apply theoretical concepts, promote client centered health and wellness, and implement safe care to clients in a variety of settings across the lifespan.		
10. Course Objectives:	<ol> <li>Upon completion of this course, the student will be able to:         <ol> <li>Identify the data gathering that is benchmarks of the integumentary, genitourinary, and musculoskeletal systems along with the nutrition deficient and surgical patient.</li> <li>Describe basic pathophysiology of dysrhythmias.</li> <li>Discuss the common diagnostic procedures used in determining deficits of the integumentary, genitourinary, and musculoskeletal systems along with the nutrition deficient and surgical patient.</li> <li>List the cardinal signs and symptoms of the integumentary, genitourinary, and musculoskeletal systems along with the nutrition deficient and surgical patient.</li> <li>Identify the drugs commonly used in the integumentary, genitourinary, and musculoskeletal systems along with the nutrition deficient and surgical patient.</li> </ol> </li> <li>Discuss the dietary considerations in the management of the client with a deficit of the integumentary, genitourinary, and musculoskeletal systems along with the nutrition deficient and surgical patient.</li> <li>Describe the components of the nursing process used in the nursing management of a client with a integumentary, genitourinary, and musculoskeletal system deficit along with the nutrition deficient and surgical patient.</li> <li>Provide the client and/or family with pertinent information regarding the care of the client with a integumentary, genitourinary, and musculoskeletal systems along with the nutrition deficient and surgical patient.</li> </ol>		
11. Required Texts/ Supplement al Reading	<ul> <li>Cooper, K., &amp; Gosnell, K. (2023). Foundations of Nursing (9th ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.</li> <li>Ogden, S. J., &amp; Fluharity, L. K. (2022). Calculation of Drug Dosages: A Worktext (12th ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.</li> <li>Nix, S. (2022). Williams' Basic Nutrition &amp; Diet Therapy (16th ed.). St. Louis, MO. Elsevier.</li> <li>Lilley, L.L., Collins &amp; S, Snyder, J. (2022). Pharmacology And The Nursing Process (10<sup>th</sup> ed.) St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.</li> <li>Leifer, G., &amp; Fleck E. (2022). Growth and Development Across the Lifespan (3rd ed.). St. Louis, MO. Elsevier.</li> </ul>		

12. Course	Students are expected to atte	end each class to maximize learning and to take	
Requiremen	written examinations at scheduled times. Students will participate in class		
ts:	through discussion and group projects.		
13.		Dishonesty, plagiarism, copying and any other behavior that is contrary to	
Academic		will not be tolerated. Any student found guilty of	
Integrity:		an "F" as a final course grade.	
integrity:	Paper, pencil testing and/or	an i as a imai course grade.	
	presentations and written	POINTS	
14.	assignments:		
Evaluation	Quiz (3):	15%	
Methods/	Exams (2):	15%	
Grading	` ′	25%	
Policy	Midterm (1):	2370	
Foncy	Final: NCLEX Review	30% (Pass/Fail)	
	Exam	1000/	
	TOTAL POINTS:	100%	
	Grading Scale:		
	A = 90-100% B = 80-89%		
	C = 75-79% (75% is a passing	ng grade for the course)	
	Nurging Skills Lab and Clini	igal Practice Lie evaluated based on skill	
	Nursing Skills Lab and Clinical Practice I is evaluated based on skill competency and assessment skills on a PASS or FAIL basis.  *All students must pass the Dosage Calculation Quizzes/ Medication Math in order to establish competency. Competency will be measured by obtaining a minimum 90%. Students will be given two opportunities to take the quiz/exam		
		etween testing and evidence of remediation must be	
		mpt. Failure of the medication math exam the third	
	1 *	the clinical course for that term. In this case, the	
		from the corresponding theory course, as theory	
		oncurrently. The student may not progress in the	
	program until the clinical course is successfully passed.		
	Missed Exam Policy		
	_	zed as excused absence only allows the student to the excused absence occurred on a day where an	
	exam was administer	<del>_</del>	
		to an excused absence must be made up on the first	
	` '	chool. The maximum exam grade allowed will be	
		to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No	
	make-ups allowed.	To all interiorista autorior will result in a 2010. 110	
	Missed Quiz Policy		

15. Attendance Policy	<ul> <li>An absence categorized as excused absence only allows the student to make up a quiz if the excused absence occurred on a day where a quiz was administered.</li> <li>A missed quiz due to an excused absence must be made up on the first day of the return to school. The maximum quiz grade allowed will be 75%.</li> <li>A missed quiz due to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No make-ups allowed.</li> <li>Refer to the Student Handbook for the VN attendance policy. Notify the Instructor of any absence or tardiness before class time if possible.</li> </ul>	
16. Course	Week 1 Theory – 16 Hours Clinical – 16 Hours  Dosage Calculation Quiz  Week 2 Theory – 16 Hours	Medical Surgical Nursing  - CH. 23 Specimen Collection and Diagnostic Testing  - CH. 15 Elimination and Gastric Intubation  - CH. 42 Care of the Surgical Patient Pharmacology  - CH. 38 Antibiotics Part 1 Skills Laboratory – 8 Hours  - Skill 15-1 Catheterization: Male and Female Patients  - Skill 15-3 Catheter Irrigation  - Skill 15-4 Removing an Indwelling Catheter Clinical – 8 Hours: Site TBD
Outline	Clinical – 16 Hours  Quiz # 1  Medical Surgical Nursing  CH. 23, 42	<ul> <li>CH. 42 Care of the Surgical Patient</li> <li>CH. 22 Surgical Wound Care</li> <li>CH. 15 Elimination and Gastric Intubation</li> <li>Pharmacology</li> <li>CH.39 Antibiotics Part 2</li> <li>Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD</li> </ul>
	Week 3 Theory – 16 Hours Clinical – 16 Hours  Exam # 1 Medical Surgical Nursing CH. 23,42,22,15 Pharmacology	Medical Surgical Nursing  - CH. 43 Care of the Patient with an Integumentary Disorder Pharmacology  - CH. 56 Dermatologic Drugs Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD

CH.39	
Week 4 Theory – 16 Hours Clinical – 16 Hours  Quiz # 2 Pharmacology CH. 38	Medical Surgical Nursing  - CH. 43 Care of the Patient With an Integumentary Disorder  - CH. 19 Nutritional Concepts and Related Therapies Pharmacology  - CH. 53 Vitamins and Minerals Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD
Week 5 Theory – 16 Hours Clinical – 16 Hours  Midterm Medical Surgical Nursing CH. 43, 19 Pharmacology CH. 56, 53	Medical Surgical Nursing  - CH. 18 Fluids and Electrolytes Pharmacology  - CH. 29 Fluids and Electrolytes Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD
Week 6 Theory – 12 Hours Clinical – 16 Hours  Quiz # 3 Medical Surgical Nursing CH. 18 Pharmacology CH. 29	Medical Surgical Nursing  - CH. 50 Care of the Patient With a Urinary Disorder  Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD
Week 7 Theory – 14 Hours Clinical – 16 Hours	Medical Surgical Nursing  - CH. 50 Care of the Patient with a Urinary Disorder  - CH. 44 Care of the Patient with a Musculoskeletal Disorder  Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD
Week 8 Theory – 14 Hours Clinical – 16 Hours Week 9	Medical Surgical Nursing  - CH. 44 Care of the Patient with a Musculoskeletal Disorder Pharmacology  - CH. 44 Anti-inflammatory and Antigout Drugs Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD Medical Surgical Nursing

Theory – 8 Hours Clinical – 24 Hours  Exam #3 Medical Surgical Nursing CH. 50, 44 Pharmacology CH. 44	- CH. 38 Long-Term Care - CH. 39 Rehabilitation Nursing Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD
Week 10 Clinical – 32 Hours	Skills Laboratory Skills Competency Checkoff – 8 Hours  - Skill 15-1 Catheterization: Male and Female Patients  - Skill 15-3 Catheter Irrigation  - Skill 15-4 Removing an Indwelling Catheter Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD
Week 11 Theory – 2 Hours Clinical – 24 Hours  VN 300 Final Cumulative 2 Hours	Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD

1erm 4	T	
Course	VN 400	
Code:		
Course	Medical Surgical Nursing IV	
Title:		
1. Length of	Clock Hours: 346	
Course:		
2. Method	Theory: 106 Hours	
of Teaching:	Clinical: 240 Hours	
3. Teaching	Lecture, discussion, small group participation; audio-visual; interactive	
Strategies:	learning.	
	Faculty: M. Quillope, RN	
	Faculty Qualifications:	
	Current Active California Registered Nurse	
	Associate of Science in Nursing – Kaplan College	
	CI. : 141. 4 I M C. 1 DN DCN	
	Clinical Adjunct: I. McCracken, RN BSN	
	Faculty Qualifications:	
	Current Active California Registered Nurse     Pachalor's of Science in Nursing Metional University	
4. Faculty:	Bachelor's of Science in Nursing – National University	
4. I dealty.	Faculty: S. Guihama, RN MSN, Ed.	
	Faculty Qualifications:	
	Current Active California Registered Nurse	
	Master's of Science in Nursing – Western Governors University	
	Clinical Adjunct: M. Lankford, RN MSN, Ed.	
	Faculty Qualifications:	
	Current Active California Registered Nurse	
	Master's of Science in Nursing – Western Governors University	
5. Office	2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201 Chula Vista, CA 91915	
Locations:		
6. Office	Monday- 1:00PM- 4:00PM	
Hours:	Tuesday – Friday – 4:00PM – 6:00PM	
7. Phone	(619) 679-2893	
Numbers:		
8. Course		
Prerequisite	Admission to Practical Nursing Program	
s:		
9. Course	This course emphasizes the common disease processes, treatments, and	
Description:	pharmacological agents used for disorders of the gastrointestinal, endocrine,	

and reproductive systems. Maternal health and pediatric care is also discussed. Using the nursing process, components of the head-to-toe data collection will be used to formulate plans of care. The student will apply knowledge learned in the classroom, the skills laboratory and in clinical settings with related client assignments. Clinical learning experiences provide opportunity to apply theoretical concepts, promote client centered health and wellness, and implement safe care to clients in a variety of settings across the lifespan. Upon completion of this course, the student will be able to: 1. Identify the data gathering that is benchmarks of the gastrointestinal, endocrine, reproductive systems and the labor and delivery, and pediatric client. 2. Discuss the common diagnostic procedures used in determining deficits of the gastrointestinal, endocrine, reproductive systems and the labor and delivery, and pediatric client. 3. List the cardinal signs and symptoms of gastrointestinal, endocrine. reproductive systems and the labor and delivery, and pediatric client. 4. Identify the drugs commonly used in the gastrointestinal, endocrine, reproductive systems and the labor and delivery, and pediatric client. 5. Discuss the dietary considerations in the management of the client with a deficit of the gastrointestinal, endocrine, reproductive systems and the labor and delivery, and pediatric client. 6. Describe the components of the nursing process used in the nursing management of a client with a gastrointestinal, endocrine, reproductive systems and the labor and delivery, and pediatric client. 7. Provide the client and/or family with pertinent information regarding 10. Course the care of the client with a gastrointestinal, endocrine, reproductive Objectives: systems and the labor and delivery, and pediatric client deficit. 8. List the common sexually transmitted diseases (STD's). 9. Describe currently used methods of prevention of STD's. 10. Identify the impact of cultural diversities in maternal and infant care on current nursing practice. 11. Discuss the physiological and psychological changes that occur during pregnancy. 12. Identify the diagnostic tests used to identify female reproductive disorders and normal vs. high-risk pregnancies. 13. Utilize the nursing process in the data gathering and management of the neonate 14. Provide the client and/or the family with pertinent information regarding postpartum care and care of the neonate. 15. Identify common deficits of the pediatric client. 16. List the drugs used for common illnesses of the pediatric client. 17. Discuss dietary requirements for all stages of the pediatric client in health and disease. 18. Describe common diagnostic tests used to identify deficits in the pediatric patient.

	<ul> <li>19. Discuss strategies that provide a safe, culturally sensitive, and client-centered care environment for the promotion, education and maintenance of wellness in the pediatric client.</li> <li>20. Discuss the basic principles of growth &amp; development for the pediatric client.</li> </ul>	
11. Required Texts/ Supplement al Reading	<ul> <li>Cooper, K., &amp; Gosnell, K. (2023). Foundations of Nursing (9th ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.</li> <li>Ogden, S. J., &amp; Fluharity, L. K. (2022). Calculation of Drug Dosages: A Worktext (12th ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.</li> <li>Nix, S. (2022). Williams' Basic Nutrition &amp; Diet Therapy (16th ed.). St. Louis, MO. Elsevier.</li> <li>Lilley, L.L., Collins &amp; S, Snyder, J. (2022). Pharmacology And The Nursing Process (10<sup>th</sup> ed.) St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.</li> <li>Leifer, G., &amp; Fleck E. (2022). Growth and Development Across the Lifespan (3rd ed.). St. Louis, MO. Elsevier.</li> </ul>	
12. Course Requiremen ts:	Students are expected to attend each class to maximize learning and to take written examinations at scheduled times. Students will participate in class through discussion and group projects.	
13. Academic Integrity:	Dishonesty, plagiarism, copying and any other behavior that is contrary to school standards of behavior will not be tolerated. Any student found guilty of such offenses will be given an "F" as a final course grade.	
14. Evaluation	Paper, pencil testing and/or presentations and written assignments:	POINTS
Methods/	Quiz (3):	5%
Grading	Exam (2):	15%
Policy	Midterm (1):	25%
	Final:	30%
	TOTAL POINTS:	100%
	Nursing Skills Lab and competency and assessr *All students must pass	Clinical Practice I is evaluated based on skill ment skills on a PASS or FAIL basis.  the Dosage Calculation Quizzes/ Medication Math in cotonsy. Competency will be measured by obtaining a
	order to establish competency. Competency will be measured by obtaining a minimum 90%. Students will be given two opportunities to take the quiz/ex	

	provided before the 2nd time constitutes a failure student must withdraw (and clinical must be take program until the clinical Missed Exam Policy  • An absence cate make up an exam exam was admin exam was admin Exam(s) missed day of the return 75%.	due to an excused absence must be made up on the first to school. The maximum exam grade allowed will be due to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No
15.	make up a quiz i was administered • A missed quiz de day of the return 75%. • A missed quiz de make-ups allower	ue to an excused absence must be made up on the first to school. The maximum quiz grade allowed will be ue to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No ed.
Attendance Policy	Refer to the Student Handbook for the VN attendance policy. Notify the Instructor of any absence or tardiness before class time if possible.	
16. Course Outline	Week 1 Theory – 16 Clinical – 16 Dosage Calculation Quiz	<ul> <li>Medical Surgical Nursing</li> <li>CH. 45 Care of the Patient With a Gastrointestinal Disorder</li> <li>Pharmacology</li> <li>CH. 50 Acid-Controlling Drugs</li> <li>CH. 51 Bowel Disorder Drugs</li> <li>CH. 52 Antiemetic and Antinausea Drugs</li> <li>Skills Laboratory – 8 Hours</li> <li>Skill 15-5 Inserting a Nasogastric Tube</li> <li>Skill 15-6 Nasogastric Tube Irrigation</li> <li>Skill 15-7 Care of Gastric and Intestinal Suctioning</li> <li>Skill 15-8 Nasogastric Tube Removal</li> <li>Skill 15-9 Inserting a Rectal Tube</li> <li>Skill 15-10 Administering an Enema</li> <li>Skill 15-11 Performing Colostomy, ileostomy. And Urostomy Care</li> </ul>

- Skill 19-1 Administering Nasogastric Tube Feedings		
And Urostomy Care  - Skill 15-12 Performing Colostomy Irrigation - Skill 19-1 Administering Nasogastric Tube Feedings		Feedings - Skill 19-2 Administering Enteral Feedings via Gastrostomy or Jejunostomy Tube Clinical – 8 Hours: Site TBD  Skills Laboratory – 8 Hours Performance Checkoff - Skill 15-5 Inserting a Nasogastric Tube - Skill 15-6 Nasogastric Tube Irrigation - Skill 15-7 Care of Gastric and Intestinal Suctioning - Skill 15-8 Nasogastric Tube Removal - Skill 15-9 Inserting a Rectal Tube - Skill 15-10 Administering an Enema - Skill 15-11 Performing Colostomy, ileostomy, And Urostomy Care - Skill 15-12 Performing Colostomy Irrigation - Skill 19-1 Administering Nasogastric Tube Feedings - Skill 19-2 Administering Enteral Feedings via Gastrostomy or Jejunostomy Tube
Week 3 Theory – 8 Clinical – 24 Medical Surgical Nursing	Theory – 8 Clinical – 24  Quiz #1 Medical Surgical Nursing CH.45 Pharmacology	<ul> <li>Medical Surgical Nursing</li> <li>CH. 51 Care of the Patient with an Endocrine Disorder</li> <li>Pharmacology</li> <li>CH.30 Pituitary Drugs</li> <li>CH. 31 Thyroid and Antithyroid Drugs</li> </ul>
Week 4 Theory – 8 Clinical – 24  CH. 51 Care of the Patient with an Endocrine Disorder Pharmacology - CH.32 Antidiabetic Drugs - CH.33 Adrenal Drugs Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD  Week 5  Medical Surgical Nursing	Theory – 8 Clinical – 24	<ul> <li>CH. 51 Care of the Patient with an Endocrine Disorder</li> <li>Pharmacology</li> <li>CH.32 Antidiabetic Drugs</li> <li>CH.33 Adrenal Drugs</li> <li>Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD</li> </ul>

Theory – 16 Clinical – 16  Exam #1 Medical Surgical Nursing CH. 45, 51 Pharmacology CH. 30-33, 50-52	<ul> <li>CH. 52 Care of the Patient with a Reproductive Disorder</li> <li>Pharmacology</li> <li>CH. 34 Women's Health Drugs</li> <li>CH. 35 Men's Health Drugs</li> <li>Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD</li> </ul>
Week 6 Theory – 16 Clinical – 16  Quiz #2 Medical Surgical Nursing CH. 52 Pharmacology CH.34-35	Maternal Health Nursing  - CH. 26 Health Promotion and Pregnancy - CH. 27 Labor and Delivery Skills Laboratory - Maternal Health Nursing Skills Clinical – 16 Hours: Skills Lab
Week 7 Theory – 16 Clinical – 16  Midterm Medical Surgical Nursing CH.52, 26-27 Pharmacology CH.34-35	<ul> <li>Maternal Health Nursing</li> <li>CH. 28 Care of the Mother and Newborn</li> <li>CH. 29 Care of the High-Risk Mother, Newborn, and Family With Special Needs</li> <li>Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD</li> </ul>
Week 8 Theory – 2 Clinical – 16  Quiz #3 Medical Surgical Nursing CH. 28,29	Pediatric Nursing  - CH. 30 Health Promotion for the Infant, Child, and Adolescent  - CH. 31 Basic Pediatric Nursing Care Pharmacology  - CH.18 Pediatric Dosages Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD
Week 9	Pediatric Nursing

Theory – 8 Clinical – 24	- CH.32 Care of the Child with a Physical and Mental or Cognitive Disorder
Exam # 3 Medical Surgical Nursing CH. 30-31	Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD
Week 10 Theory – 2 Clinical – 24  VN 400 Final Cumulative	Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD
Week 11 Clinical – 32	Clinical – 32 Hours: Site TBD

Course Code:	VN 500	
Course		
Title:	Medical Surgical Nursing V	
1. Length of Course:	Clock Hours: 350	
2. Method	Theory: 110 Hours	
of Teaching:	Clinical: 240 Hours	
3. Teaching	Lecture, discussion, small group participation; audio-visual; interactive	
Strategies:	learning.	
Faculty: M. Quillope, RN Faculty Qualifications:  Current Active California Registered Nurse Associate of Science in Nursing – Kaplan College		
	Clinical Adjunct: I. McCracken, RN BSN	

	Faculty Qualifications:		
	<ul> <li>Current Active California Registered Nurse</li> <li>Bachelor's of Science in Nursing – National University</li> </ul>		
5. Office	Clinical Adjunct: S. Guihama, RN MSN, Ed. Faculty Qualifications:  • Current Active California Registered Nurse • Master's of Science in Nursing – Western Governors University  Clinical Adjunct: M. Lankford, RN MSN, Ed. Faculty Qualifications:  • Current Active California Registered Nurse • Master's of Science in Nursing – Western Governors University		
Locations:	2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201 Chula Vista, CA 91915		
6. Office Hours:	Monday- 1:00PM- 4:00PM Tuesday – Friday – 4:00PM – 6:00PM		
7. Phone Numbers:	(619) 679-2893		
8. Course Prerequisite s:	Admission to Practical Nursing Program		
9. Course Description:	This course emphasizes the common disease processes, treatments, and pharmacological agents used for disorders of the neurological, and immunological/ oncological systems. Using the nursing process, components of the head-to-toe data collection will be used to formulate plans of care. The student will apply knowledge learned in the classroom, the skills laboratory and in clinical settings with related client assignments. Clinical learning experiences provide opportunity to apply theoretical concepts, promote client centered health and wellness, and implement safe care to clients in a variety of settings across the lifespan. This course also utilizes the VN Comprehensive Predictor Assessment results to help students focus on areas requiring review before NCLEX.		
10. Course Objectives:	<ol> <li>Upon completion of this course, the student will be able to:         <ol> <li>Identify the data gathering that is benchmarks of the patient with a neurological and immune system disorder.</li> <li>Identify the data gathering that is benchmarks of the patient with an oncology disorder.</li> <li>Discuss the common diagnostic procedures used in determining deficits of the neurological, and immunological systems.</li> </ol> </li> <li>Discuss the common diagnostic procedures used in determining deficits of the oncology patient.</li> </ol>		

- 5. List the cardinal signs and symptoms of the neurological, and immunological/oncological problems. 6. Identify the drugs commonly used in the neurological, and immunological/oncological disease process 7. Discuss the dietary considerations in the management of the client with a deficit of the neurological, and immunological/oncological areas. 8. Describe the components of the nursing process used in the nursing management of a client with a neurological, and immunological/ oncological deficit. 9. Provide the client and/or family with pertinent information regarding the care of the client with a neurological, and immunological/ oncological system deficit. 10. Prepare a nursing care plan for a client with a neurological, and immunological/oncological disorder. 11. Define leadership. 12. Define management. 13. List qualities of effective leaders and managers. 14. Summarize the five rights of delegation. 15. Discuss the role of the charge nurse. 16. Describe different types of team nursing. 17. Summarize the duties of a nurse team leader. 18. Summarize qualities of effective leaders and managers. 19. Discuss delegation of duties to unlicensed personnel based on the nurse practice act. 20. Understand the role of the Practical nurse in delegation guided by the state's Nurse Practice Act 21. Demonstrate managing communication with co-workers, supervisors, visitors, and physicians. 22. Use effective management techniques in communication with coworkers, supervisors, clients, physicians, and visitors. 23. Discuss a comprehensive and personal study plan for NCLEX. 24. Describe test taking strategies for answering questions on the NCLEX. Cooper, K., & Gosnell, K. (2023). Foundations of Nursing (9th ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier. Ogden, S. J., & Fluharity, L. K. (2022). Calculation of Drug Dosages: A
- 11. Required Texts/ Supplement al Reading
- Worktext (12th ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.
- Nix, S. (2022). Williams' Basic Nutrition & Diet Therapy (16th ed.). St. Louis, MO. Elsevier.
- Lilley, L.L., Collins & S, Snyder, J. (2022). Pharmacology And The Nursing Process (10<sup>th</sup> ed.) St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.
- Carroll, L. & Collier, J., (2023). Success in Practical/Vocational Nursing (10th ed). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.

	• Leifer, G., & Fle	ck E. (2022). Growth and Development Across the		
	Lifespan (3rd ed.). St. Louis, MO. Elsevier.			
12. Course	Students are expected to	attend each class to maximize learning and to take		
Requiremen	written examinations at	scheduled times. Students will participate in class		
ts:	through discussion and	group projects.		
13.	Dishonesty, plagiarism,	copying and any other behavior that is contrary to		
Academic	school standards of beha	avior will not be tolerated. Any student found guilty of		
Integrity:	such offenses will be give	ven an "F" as a final course grade.		
	Paper, pencil testing			
	and/or presentations	POINTS		
14.	and written	POINTS		
Evaluation	assignments:			
Methods/	Quizzes (2):	10%		
Grading	Exam (2):	30%		
Policy	Midterm (1)	20%		
	Final:	40%		
	TOTAL POINTS:	100%		
	Grading Scale:			
	A = 90-100%			
	B = 80-89%			
	C = 75-79% (75% is a p	assing grade for the course)		
	Nursing Skills Lab and	Clinical Practice I is evaluated based on skill		
	competency and assessn	nent skills on a PASS or FAIL basis.		
	*All students must pass	the Dosage Calculation Quizzes/ Medication Math in		
	order to establish competency. Competency will be measured by obtaining a			
		minimum 90%. Students will be given two opportunities to take the quiz/exam		
	with a minimum of 3 days between testing and evidence of remediation must be provided before the 2nd attempt. Failure of the medication math exam the third time constitutes a failure in the clinical course for that term. In this case, the student must withdraw (W) from the corresponding theory course, as theory and clinical must be taken concurrently. The student may not progress in the program until the clinical course is successfully passed.  **A Proctored Comprehensive Predictor Assessment will be administered in term 5 of this program. Students must achieve a score indicating an adjusted individual score of 70 in order to be successful on this exam. If a student does not reach the adjusted individual score of 70 on the first attempt, they will be given a second attempt to achieve the required score. Students will have a maximum of two attempts to complete this assessment. Scores below adjusted individual score of 70 will receive an F grade (50%) on the exam. Scores at or			
	above the adjusted individual score of 70 will receive the individual score as			
	the exam grade.			

	For example, a student who achieves an individual score of 95 – will earn 95% exam score. A student who achieves an individual score of 68 will ea 50% exam score. These scores are not rounded up or down.  Missed Exam Policy  An absence categorized as excused absence only allows the studen		
	<ul> <li>An absence categorized as excused absence only allows the student to make up an exam if the excused absence occurred on a day where an exam was administered.</li> <li>Exam(s) missed due to an excused absence must be made up on the first day of the return to school. The maximum exam grade allowed will be 75%.</li> <li>Exam(s) missed due to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No make-ups allowed.</li> </ul>		
	Missed Quiz Policy  • An absence cate make up a quiz i	gorized as excused absence only allows the student to f the excused absence occurred on a day where a quiz	
	day of the return 75%.	ue to an excused absence must be made up on the first to school. The maximum quiz grade allowed will be ue to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No	
15. Attendance Policy	Refer to the Student Handbook for the VN attendance policy. Notify the Instructor of any absence or tardiness before class time if possible.		
	Week 1 Theory – 8 Clinical – 24	Medical Surgical Nursing  - CH. 54 Care of the Patient With a Neurologic Disorder Pharmacology	
16. Course Outline	Dosage Calculation Quiz	- CH. 57 Ophthalmic Drugs - CH. 58 Otic Drugs Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD	
	Week 2 Theory – 8 Clinical – 24	Medical Surgical Nursing - CH. 54 Care of the Patient With a Neurologic	
	Quiz # 1 Medical Surgical Nursing	Disorder Pharmacology - CH. 14 Antiepileptic Drugs	
	CH. 54 Pharmacology CH. 57, 14	Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD	
	Week 3	Medical Surgical Nursing	

Week 4 Theory – 16 Clinical – 16 Clinical – 16 Clinical – 16  Quiz # 2 Medical Surgical Nursing CH. 55 Pharmacology CH. 48 Clinical – 24  Midterm Medical Surgical Nursing CH. 55,56,57 Pharmacology CH. 40,45-46 Week 6  Medical Surgical Nursing - CH. 56 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 56 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 56 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 56 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 56 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 56 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 56 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with HIV - CH. 57 Care of the Patient with Cancer Pharmacology - CH. 40 Antiviral Drugs - CH. 45 Antineoplastic Drugs Part 1: Cancer Overview and Cell Cycle–Specific Drugs - CH. 46 Cell-Cycle–Nonspecific and Miscellaneous Drugs - CH. 48 Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD  Medical Surgical Nursing - CH. 58 Professional Roles and Leadership Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD
Week 5 Theory – 8 Clinical – 24  Midterm Medical Surgical Nursing CH. 55,56,57 Pharmacology CH. 40,45-46  Medical Surgical Nursing - CH. 58 Professional Roles and Leadership Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD
Weels 6
Theory – 8 Clinical – 24  Medical Surgical Nursing - CH.37 Home Health Nursing Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD
Week 7 Theory – 8 Clinical – 24 Clinical – 24 Week 8  Medical Surgical Nursing - CH.40 Hospice Care Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD

	,
Theory – 8	Chapter 23: The NCLEX-PN® Examination
Clinical – 24	
	Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD
Exam # 2	
Medical Surgical	
Nursing	
CH. 37, 40	
Week 9	NCLEX Review
Theory – 8	Chapter 23: The NCLEX-PN® Examination
Clinical – 24	-
	Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD
Week 10	NCLEX Review
Theory – 16	- Chapter 23: The NCLEX-PN® Examination
Clinical – 24	-
	Clinical – 24 Hours: Site TBD
	NCLEX Review
Week 11	- Chapter 23: The NCLEX-PN® Examination
Theory – 12	
Clinical – 16	Clinical – 16 Hours: Site TBD
Final Examination	Proctored Comprehensive Predictor Assessment – 4
4 Hours	Hours

#### **ELIGIBILITY FOR LICENSURE**

- All core nursing courses in the pre-licensure programs must be completed with a minimum grade of a "C" or 75%. A final course grade of 74.5% will be rounded to 75%.
- School to Submit a Record of Nursing Program Form
- 1. California Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians
  - 1. Minimum Age 17 Years.
  - 2. Completion of the 12th Grade of schooling or its equivalent (furnish proof).
  - 3. Complete and sign the "Application for Vocational Nurse Licensure".

Persons who desire to qualify for licensure under Section 2873 of the Code must meet the requirements of one of the following:

- (a) Completion of a course in vocational or practical nursing in a school approved by another state, provided that the course completed is substantially equivalent to that prescribed by Section 2533 of this Chapter; or
- (b) Completion of the following experience and pharmacology course:(1) Completion within the 10 years prior to the date of application of not less than 51 months of paid general duty inpatient bedside nursing experience in a clinical facility, at least half of which shall have been within five years prior to the date of application. Paid general duty inpatient bedside nursing experience is the performance of direct patient care functions provided throughout the patient's stay that encompass the breadth and depth of experience equivalent to that performed by the licensed vocational nurse.
- (A) Such experience shall be verified by the employer showing specific dates of employment.
- (B) The 51 months experience prescribed above shall include a minimum of each of the following: 48 months medical-surgical nursing; 6 weeks maternity or genitourinary nursing; 6 weeks pediatric nursing.
- (C) Experience in any one or combination of the following areas may be substituted for a maximum of 8 months of medical-surgical experience:
- 1. Communicable Disease Nursing
- 2. Public Health Nursing
- 3. Occupational Health Nursing
- 4. Office Nursing (M.D.)
- 5. Psychiatric Nursing
- 6. Operating Room Nursing
- 7. Private Duty Nursing (performed in acute care facilities only)
- 8. Emergency Room Nursing
- 9. Outpatient Clinic
- 10.Post Anesthesia Recovery Nursing
- 11. Hemodialysis Nursing
- 12. Rehabilitation Nursing
- 13. Gerontological Nursing
- 14. Emergency Medical Technician service
- (D) Applicants with formal nursing education may submit official transcripts for evaluation of possible credit in lieu of paid inpatient bedside nursing experience.
- (E) Applicants reapplying on the basis of experience acquired subsequent to the date of

the original application shall show that the qualifying experience has been completed within 10 years prior to the date of reapplication and that at least half of such experience has been within five years prior to the date of reapplication.

(2) The applicant must submit proof of completion of a course of at least 54 theory hours of pharmacology.

The course shall include but not be limited to:

- (A) Knowledge of commonly used drugs and their action
- (B) Computation of dosages
- (C) Preparation of medications
- (D) Principles of administration
- (3) Verification of work experience shall include certification from the R.N. director or supervisor that the applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated the following knowledge and skills: (A) Basic Bedside Nursing

Ambulation techniques, Bedmaking, Urinary Catheter care, Collection of specimens, Diabetic testing, Administration of a cleansing enema, Feeding patient, Hot and cold applications, Intake and Output, Personal hygiene, and comfort measures, Positioning and transfer, Range of motion, Skin care, Vital signs, Communication skills, both verbal and written, including communication with patients who have psychological disorders(B) Infection control procedures (may be demonstrated in classroom, lab, and/or patient care settings.)

- 1. Asepsis
- 2. Techniques for strict, contact, respiratory, enteric, tuberculosis, drainage, universal and immunosuppressed patient isolation.

### ATTENDANCE POLICY (CEC §94909(a)(8)(D))

#### Theory Attendance

A maximum of no more than two (2) absences per term may be permitted. All missed time must be made up in order to complete the required clock hours. This will involve the student making up the hours on campus on days of the week other than scheduled classes. Absences must be made up within two weeks of the absence and within the term in which they occur. The Director of Nursing will review attendance weekly. Students MUST make up all missed coursework, clinical time/ and or skills laboratory time. Students must notify their instructor, at least one hour prior to the class start, if they will be absent. Texting is not permitted.

### Theory Make-Up

Arrangements for make-up hours and/or assignments must be given by the instructor so that the learning objectives for the time absent are completed.

- All theory make-ups MUST be assigned by the instructor. Make-up assignments are in the appropriate course objectives of the time missed and documented on a make-up form.
- Make-Up work will be assigned covering specific objectives for the time missed in the form of case studies, independent study, written examination, attendance at seminars or workshops, auto-tutorial laboratory, and research reports.
- Make-up work must be completed within two weeks of the absence or before the end of the term whichever comes first.
- All Make-up forms with objectives and assignments are to be approved by the instructor.
- All students are responsible for turning in approved make up form and assignment to the Director of Nursing or designee for review.

#### Clinical/ Skills Lab Attendance

A maximum of no more than two (2) absences per term may be permitted. Students are expected to attend all clinical days in order to meet the objectives of the Vocational Nursing Program and legal requirements for licensure. If the student is unable to attend clinical due to a documented emergency, such as an illness, accident, or death in the immediate family, the student will be responsible for notifying the instructor at least one hour prior to the beginning of the clinical assignment. Failure to call the instructor of an absence constitutes a no call, no show. Attendance of partial clinical rotations will not be allowed; the full clinical rotation must be repeated if the student is unable to attend all the assigned clinical practicum days. All clinical hours missed shall be made up by meeting the clinical objectives assigned by the instructor. All hours must be made up prior to the completion of the term.

Makeup clinical will be assigned by the instructor to ensure objectives and hours are completed. The student will

- Make-up time for missed clinical nursing experiences will be determined by the Director of Nursing and clinical facilities/ Skills lab availability.
- Make-up Clinical work will be assigned covering course objectives for the time missed in the form of a performance evaluation in skills laboratory or additional time in the clinical area with clients/patients.
- Make-up work must be completed within two weeks of the absence or before the end of the term whichever comes first.
- Failure to complete make-up clinical may result in course failure.
- All excused/unexcused absences MUST be made up.
- Students must contact the Director of Nursing or designee within 24 hours to schedule the make up.
- The program will require withdrawal of any student who has missed sufficient clinical hours to prevent completion of clinical objectives.

#### Clinical/ Skills Lab Expectations

- Clinical Orientation is MANDATORY. Absence will result in withdrawal from the Vocational Nursing Program.
- It is expected that students of Meta Polytechnic will be consistently on time and prepared for all clinical/ skills lab assignments.
- Students are expected to attend all clinical activities, including simulation, lab, and extrinsic sites.
- Any student reporting unprepared, or inappropriately dressed prior to clinical or any other non-professional behavior will be sent home and marked absent.
  - o 1st Offense = student will receive a warning and receive a written counseling statement.
  - o 2nd Offense = student will be sent home with Clinical Day Failure and receive a written counseling statement.
  - o 3rd Offense = student will be sent home and receive a Clinical Day Failure. Student will be dropped from the program.

#### **Tardiness**

- Theory Tardiness Students are required to arrive on time for class sessions. Two (2) tardies or early departures will equal one (1) absence. In Theory class, a tardy is defined as fifteen minutes late and leaving early is defined as any time before the didactic class is dismissed. Not signing your name, time in or out, is also defined as tardy.
- Lab/Clinical Tardiness No tardiness is allowed in any clinical/ skills lab class. Any
  student reporting to clinical or the lab late after the scheduled time (as scheduled weekly)
  is subject to penalties and consequences associated with professionalism and
  accountability.

- o 1st offense = student will receive a verbal warning with a written counseling statement.
- o 2nd offense = student will be sent home and receive a Clinical Day Failure with a written counseling statement.
- o 3rd offense = student will be sent home and receive a Clinical Day Failure which will constitute a course failure.

# Documentation accepted for an absence:

- Family emergency.
- Student's illness or injury verified by a Physician, Physician's Assistant, or Nurse Practitioner.
- Significant illness or injury of a dependent verified by a Physician, Physician's Assistant, or Nurse Practitioner.
- Death of an immediate family member. Immediate family members include spouse or domestic partner, parent, child, sibling or grandparent.
- Mandated court appearance.
- Circumstances preapproved by the Director of Nursing.
- Military duty.

## No Call, No Show

- A student who is a no call, no show will be placed on absence probation as this is an example of unprofessional conduct.
- A No call, no show may also result in a safety infraction on the student's evaluation.
- A second occurrence of a no call, no show will result in a warning of failing the course.
- Two unacceptable reasons for missing a clinical experience will result in a course failure.
- Regardless of the reason, a student must be counted as absent or tardy if any class time is missed.

# Missed Exam Policy

- An absence categorized as excused absence only allows the student to make up an exam if the excused absence occurred on a day where an exam was administered.
- Exam(s) missed due to an excused absence must be made up on the first day of the return to school. The maximum exam grade allowed will be 75%.
- Exam(s) missed due to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No make-ups allowed.

# Missed Quiz Policy

- An absence categorized as excused absence only allows the student to make up a quiz if the excused absence occurred on a day where a quiz was administered.
- A missed quiz due to an excused absence must be made up on the first day of the return to school. The maximum quiz grade allowed will be 75%.

• A missed quiz due to an unexcused absence will result in a zero. No make-ups allowed.

# Canceled Class Policy

When a scheduled class is canceled for unforeseen reasons (e.g., inclement weather etc.), the class will be made up before the end of the term in which the cancellation occurred. If students are unable to attend the rescheduled class, they will be marked absent, and the Student Attendance Policy will apply.

# LEAVE OF ABSENCE (CEC §94909(a)(8)(E))

A leave of absence may be granted to students who require one for medical or extreme hardships/ legal reasons or military orders.

Leaves of Absence are granted on an individual bases and must be requested via email (<a href="mailto:admin@MetaPolytechnic.com">admin@MetaPolytechnic.com</a>) by the student to the Director of Nursing.

The total cumulative length of time that student may take for a Leave of Absence must not exceed 180 days or ½ the program length, whichever is shorter. An approved Leave of Absence will be granted only if the student has completed at lease one course of instruction and Meta Polytechnic can reasonably expect the student to return to school and resume their program at or prior to the point in time that they left off. Students who take a Leave of Absence will be required to return to the training program at the point where they left off. All students requesting a Leave of Absence are required to meet with the Director of Nursing (330 Oxford Street Suite 208, Chula Vista, CA 91911). Failure to return from a Leave of Absence on the scheduled return date will result in termination from the vocational nursing program. No additional charges will be assessed to a student's account during the Leave of Absence. Student sill be readmitted at the end of a Leave of Absence on a "space available" basis only. If space is not available at the scheduled return date, the student will be terminated and will have to reapply for admission at a later date. Students are encouraged not to take a Leave of Absence since knowledge and skills may decline without continuous use. However, if one is required, please see the Director of Nursing.

Students are required to follow the following procedures:

- The student must sign and date the leave of absence request and specify a reason for the leave. The reason must be specified for Meta Polytechnic to have a reasonable expectation of the student's return within the timeframe of the Leave of Absence as requested.
- The student must attest to understanding the procedures and implications for returning or failing to return to the vocational nursing program.
- Meta Polytechnic will document its approval request in accordance with its published policy and will not assess the student any additional charges as a result of the Leave of Absence.

# ACADEMIC PROBATION & DISMISSAL POLICY §94909(a)(8)(c))

Specific Terms of The Academic Probation Contract

- 1. CGPA required to be in Good Academic Standing: 2.0
- 2. If your end term CGPA falls below a 2.0, you will be academically withdrawn.
- 3. If your end term CGPA is 2.0, you will continue probation.
- 4. While on academic probation, you are required to meet with the Director of Nursing a minimum of three times during the semester. It is your responsibility to schedule these appointments.

The student will sign the Academic Probation Contract and this will be stored in the student's file.

If the student does not progress during probation, the student will be terminated for non-complia nce with our attendance policy. Please see Attendance Policy section in this catalog.

#### **TERMINATION**

A maximum of no more than two (2) absence per term may be permitted. All missed time must be made up to complete the required clock hours. Make-up work must be completed within two weeks of the absence or before the end of the term whichever comes first.

If a student fails to make-up the missed time, the student will be terminated. The Date of Determination will be the 14<sup>th</sup> day after the last date of attendance recorded.

# **EDUCATIONAL COST**

# **VOCATIONAL NURSING PROGRAM FEES**

VOCATIONAL NORSHING PROGRAM FEES	Cost
A = 101	
1.Tuition	\$38,000.00
- Tuition Charges Per Hour - \$18.09	
2.Registration Fee	\$250.00
- *HESI A2 Included	
3.Assessment Fees for transfer of credits	\$200.00
4.Fees to transfer credits	\$250.00/ Course
5.Challenge Exam – For Previous Credit Transfer	\$250.00/ Course
6.Student Tuition Recovery Fund fee	\$0.00
7.Textbooks	\$750.00
<ul> <li>Herlihy, B. (2022). The Human Body in Health and Illness (7<sup>th</sup> ed.)</li> <li>St. Louis, MO: Elsevier. ISBN 9780323711265</li> </ul>	\$77.99
<ul> <li>Cooper, K., &amp; Gosnell, K. (2023). Foundations of Nursing (9th ed.).</li> <li>St. Louis, MO: Elsevier. ISBN 9780323812054</li> </ul>	\$164.99
<ul> <li>Carroll, L. &amp; Collier, J., (2023). Success in Practical/ Vocational Nursing (10th ed). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier. ISBN 9780323810173</li> </ul>	\$63.99
<ul> <li>Leifer, G., &amp; Fleck E. (2022). Growth and Development Across the Lifespan (3rd ed.). St. Louis, MO. Elsevier. ISBN 9780323809405</li> </ul>	\$52.99
<ul> <li>Lilley, L.L., Collins &amp; S, Snyder, J. (2022). Pharmacology And The Nursing Process (10<sup>th</sup> ed.) St. Louis, MO: Elsevier. ISBN 9780323827973</li> </ul>	\$125.99
<ul> <li>Nix, S. (2022). Williams' Basic Nutrition &amp; Diet Therapy (16th ed.).</li> <li>St. Louis, MO. Elsevier. ISBN 9780323653763</li> </ul>	\$87.67
Ogden, S. J., & Fluharity, L. K. (2022). Calculation of Drug	\$94.99
Dosages: A Worktext (12th ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier. ISBN	
9780323826228	
8.Elsevier 360 EDGE for LPVN Nursing	\$1,875.00¬
- \$375.00/ Term	
HESI Case Studies	
HESI Readiness Dashboard	
HESI Specialty Exams – unlimited	
HESI Custom Exams – 2 Exams	
<ul> <li>HESI Exit Exams – unlimited</li> </ul>	
Personal Assessment Builder	
HESI Comp Review eBook	
EAQ for NCLEX-PN  HEGI C	
HESI Compass  9.Uniforms	\$200.00
	\$300.00
Scrubs with school logo (4)      Warm up includ:	
<ul><li>Warm up jacket</li><li>Campus polo shirt</li></ul>	
Campus Sweatshirt	
10.Equipment	\$200.00
2012quipment	Y=00.00

•	Stethoscope	
•	Clinical Backpack	
•	Clinical Clipboard	

#### TOTAL CHARGES FOR THE CURRENT PERIOD OF ATTENDANCE

•	Term 1	\$6,952.68
•	Term 2	\$7,042.39
•	Term 3	\$7,625.52
•	Term 4	\$7,760.08
•	Term 5	\$7,849.80

# ESTIMATED TOTAL CHARGES FOR THE ENTIRE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM \$38,000.00 THE TOTAL CHARGES THE STUDENT IS OBLIGATED TO PAY UPON ENROLLMENT \$

The Application Form in this packet plus the Application Fee must be submitted prior to submitting the Enrollment Agreement. All required documents must be submitted before attending class. Tuition and related fees are due in full according to your payment schedule agreed upon at the time of registration and acceptance of the Enrollment Agreement.

ANNUAL	FINANCE	AMOUNT	TOTAL OF	TOTAL SALES	
PERCENTAGE	CHARGE	FINANCED	PAYMENT	PRICE	
RATE		The dollar The amount you The t		The total cost of	
		amount of the	amount of the will have paid		
		credit provided after you have		on credit	
		to you or on made all		including your	
		your behalf.	payments as	down payment.	
			scheduled.		
	\$	\$	\$	\$	
YOUR PAYMENT SCHEDULE WILL BE:					
NUMBER OF	NUMBER OF *AMOUNT OF WHEN PAYMENTS ARE DUE				
PAYMENTS	EACH PAYMENT				
		Beginning on	_//	and on the	
	same day each month.				

<sup>\*</sup>Minimum monthly payment exceptions are made if student is fully funded by a third-party agency.

## **METHOD OF PAYMENT:**

Option 1: Payment may be made by credit card or debit card. Meta Polytechnic accepts VISA, MasterCard, Discover and American Express.

Option 2: Payment may be made by check or money order. No cash is accepted. There is a \$40 fee for checks returned for any reason.

# STUDENT TUITION RECOVERY FUND (STRF) DISCLOSURE (CEC §94909(a)(14), 5, CCR §76215(a), and §76215(b))

"The State of California established the Student Tuition Recovery Fund (STRF) to relieve or mitigate economic loss suffered by a student in an educational program at a qualifying institution, who is or was a California resident while enrolled, or was enrolled in a residency program, if the student enrolled in the institution, prepaid tuition, and suffered an economic loss. Unless relieved of the obligation to do so, you must pay the state-imposed assessment for the STRF, or it must be paid on your behalf, if you are a student in an educational program, who is a California resident, or are enrolled in a residency program, and prepay all or part of your tuition. You are not eligible for protection from the STRF and you are not required to pay the STRF assessment, if you are not a California resident, or are not enrolled in a residency program." "It is important that you keep copies of your enrollment agreement, financial aid documents, receipts, or any other information that documents the amount paid to the school. Questions regarding the STRF may be directed to the Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education, 1747 N. Market Blvd., Suite 225, Sacramento, CA 95834, (916) 574-8900 or (888) 370-7589

To be eligible for STRF, you must be a California resident or enrolled in a residency program, prepaid tuition, paid or deemed to have paid the STRF assessment, and suffered an economic loss as a result of any of the following:

- 1. The institution, a location of the institution, or an educational program offered by the institution was closed or discontinued, and you did not choose to participate in a teach out plan approved by the Bureau or did not complete a chosen teach-out plan approved by the Bureau.
- 2. You were enrolled at an institution or a location of the institution within the 120-day period before the closure of the institution or location of the institution, or were enrolled in an educational program within the 120 day period before the program was discontinued.
- 3. You were enrolled at an institution or a location of the institution more than 120 days before the closure of the institution or location of the institution, in an educational program offered by the institution as to which the Bureau determined there was a significant decline in the quality or value of the program more than 120 days before closure.
- 4. The institution has been ordered to pay a refund by the Bureau but has failed to do so.
- 5. The institution has failed to pay or reimburse loan proceeds under a federal student loan program as required by law, or has failed to pay or reimburse proceeds received by the institution in excess of tuition and other costs.
- 6. You have been awarded restitution, a refund, or other monetary award by an arbitrator or court, based on a violation of this chapter by an institution or representative of an institution, but have been unable to collect the award from the institution.

7. You sought legal counsel that resulted in the cancellation of one or more of your student loans and have an invoice for services rendered and evidence of the cancellation of the student loan or loans. To qualify for STRF reimbursement, the application must be received within four (4) years from the date of the action or event that made the student eligible for recovery from STRF. A student whose loan is revived by a loan holder or debt collector after a period of noncollection may, at any time, file a written application for recovery from STRF for the debt that would have otherwise been eligible for recovery. If it has been more than four (4) years since the action or event that made the student eligible, the student must have filed a written application for recovery within the original four (4) year period, unless the period has been extended by another act of law. However, no claim can be paid to any student without a social security number or a taxpayer identification number."

Note: Authority cited: Sections 94803, 94877 and 94923, Education Code. Reference: Section 94923, 94924 and 94925, Education Code.

Meta Polytechnic is a private institution approved to operate by the California Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education. Approval to operate means the institution is compliant with the minimum standards contained in the California Private Postsecondary Education Act of 2009 (as amended) and Division 7.5 of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations (CEC §94909(a)(2) and CEC §94897(1)(1)(2).

Meta Polytechnic is not accredited by an agency recognized by the United States Department of Education (USDE), and this Institution's students are therefore not eligible for federal financial aid programs.

Meta Polytechnic is not approved to participate in the Federal or State Student Aid programs. (5, CCR §71810(b)(6))

Meta Polytechnic does not participate in federal or state financial aid programs (CEC §94909(a)(10)).

#### STUDENT LOAN DISCLOSURE

If a student obtains a loan to pay for an educational program, the student will have the responsibility to repay the full amount of the loan plus interest, less the amount of any refund. (CEC §94909(a)(11))

IF the student is eligible for a loan guaranteed by the federal or state government and the student defaults on the loan, both of the following may occur:

- 1. The federal or state government or a loan guarantee agency may take action against the student, including applying any income tax refund to which the person is entitled to reduce the balance owed on the loan.
- 2. The student may not be eligible for any other federal student financial aid at another institution or other government assistance until the loan is repaid (CEC §94911(g)(1)(2))

## **STUDENT SERVICES (5, CCR 71819(b)(12))**

#### JOB PLACEMENT ASSISTANCE

Meta Polytechnic does participate with job placement by providing job leads. All job opportunities are shared with all students both in lecture and posted on bulletin boards at the Chula Vista Campus (2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201, Chula Vista, CA 91913). However Meta Polytechnic does not guarantee job placement. (CEC §94909(a)(13))

### STUDENT COUNSELING

Our current students and alumni our provided services to pick up their Diploma, Official transcripts, and commencement applications. Our mission is to offer students the support and guidance necessary to successfully complete the Vocational Nursing Program.

#### STUDENT HOUSING

Meta Polytechnic does not have, under its control or ownership, and is not affiliated with any dormitory or housing facilities. (5, CCR §71810 (b)(13)(A))

There are available housing options located reasonably near the institution's facilities. The average cost for include a room or apartment rental varying from between \$550 for a room per month to \$2,450 per month for a 2-bedroom house. Students will find rental information on Craig's List San Diego at http://SanDiego.craigslist.org/(5, CCR §71810 (b)(13)(B))

Meta Polytechnic has no responsibility to find or assist a student to find housing. (5, CCR §71810 (b)(13)(C))

### CLINICAL EXPERIENCE/ EXTERNSHIP

The vocational nursing program requires students to serve clinical experience/externship in the office of a physician, hospital, clinic, or long-term care facility during, near the end or upon completion of academic training. The director of nursing/clinical instructor/extern coordinator will arrange all clinicals/externships.

The clinical/extern site is under no obligation to employ the student following completion of the clinical/externship. During the clinical experience/externship, students are given the opportunity to put their classroom and laboratory training into practical application under actual employment conditions. While on clinical/externship, the student is under the supervision of a clinical instructor/extern coordinator or school faculty. Any absence incurred during the clinical experience/externship must be reported to the Director of Nursing, the clinical instructor, extern coordinator, and the clinical extern site supervisor/preceptor. Clinical experience/externship must begin immediately upon assignment following classroom completion. All program and catalog

requirements apply, including dress code, nametags, drug use, etc. Additionally, students must abide by the rules and regulations of the site to which they are assigned. This includes rules governing confidentiality of medical records and reports to conform to the Health Insurance Portability And Accountability (HIPPA). Well on clinical experience/externship, students must comply with the following clinical/extern regulations:

- The school will assign students to a clinical/externship site.
- Students may not turn down a clinical/externship.
- The school cannot guarantee a particular facility or geographical location; however, Meta Polytechnic will consider the students request when making assignments.
- Students are not permitted to complete their clinical/externship experiences at current employers or sites where family members may have direct influence over students clinical or externship experiences.
- Students must work the same hours as employees at their assigned site.
- Shifts may be completed days, nights, and weekends to obtain the desired clinical skills. Depending upon state laws, a certain amount of time is required for lunch. Lunchtime is not included in the total clinical/externship hours.

Clinical/externship is a part of the students education. Students will not be paid and may be withdrawn from the program if the facility reports that they were asking for or receiving pay.

Certain clinical/extern sites may require that students be tested for drug usage and/or be checked for any criminal background prior to accepting them.

Students must meet objectives on the clinical/externship check off and their midpoint evaluations. An unsatisfactory evaluation from the healthcare facility may require the students to serve an extra clinical/externship. Return to school for further training or result in his or her withdrawal from the school. Poor performance or removal from a clinical site may result in withdrawal from the program.

As part of the externship requirements, students are responsible for completing and submitting forms and documents as required. Students are responsible for accurate and prompt recording of work hours as well as submitting time to the campus as instructed. Midterm evaluations must be submitted to Meta Polytechnic at the halfway point of the externship. It is the students responsibility to ensure that the health care facility has completed and signed all evaluations and time verification sheets and that the academic department has received them upon completion of his or her externship.

It is the students responsibility to attend scheduled meetings, including site interviews, before entering his or her clinical/externship. Students may be required to return to the campus during

their clinical/externship at the direction of their clinical instructor/extern coordinator or nursing program director.

Students are expected to always behave in a professional manner. Any kind of that reflects discredit upon the student, the school, or the site will subject the student to withdraw from the school.

If a student is going to be late or absent, he or she must notify the healthcare facility and a clinical instructor/externship coordinator. Violation of attendance policy will result in probation or withdraw from the school.

Student should immediately notify their clinical instructor/extern coordinator/director of nursing if any problems are encountered during clinical/externship: personal conflicts, illness, etc. (Students must never walk off the site, for any reason, without first notifying their clinical instructor/externship coordinator or nursing program director.)

If a student is dismissed from clinicals/Externship site, the program director will evaluate the circumstances of his or her dismissal, and a decision will be made regarding his or her status as a student. The student may be withdrawn from the school at that time. If the student is allowed to continue his or her clinical/externship and is dismissed from another site, he or she will be withdrawn from the school. Students who are dismissed from clinical sites externships will be required to repeat the entire clinical/ externship.

# **GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS/ GRADING POLICY** (5, CCR §71810(b)(8)

# **GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS**

To be considered a graduate of Meta Polytechnic's Vocational Nursing Program, students are required to successfully complete all program requirements. This includes all phases of their didactic training as well as their externship and/or clinical education.

Participation in commencement ceremonies does not constitute official graduation. All requirements as stated in the school catalog must be fulfilled prior to confirmation of graduate status. To be eligible to participate in the official commencement ceremonies, graduates must be current on all financial obligations at the time of commencement.

Term	Required	Required	Required	Required
	Minimum Number	Minimum	Minimum	Minimum Skills
	of Hours	Theory Hours	Clinical Hours	Hours
Term 1	310	178	40	92
Term 2	314	130	168	16
Term 3	338	130	192	16
Term 4	346	106	208	32
Term 5	350	110	240	0
Minimum Total	1,658	654	848	156
Hours to				
Graduate				
Total Number	1,658			
Approved Hours				

## **GRADING POLICY**

Student achievement may be measured in various ways including, but are not limited to, examinations, projects, reports, or research papers. The final grade is a composite of the evaluative measures used and weighted as explained in the course syllabus.

Students must earn a grade of "C" or better in all courses required by the nursing major for the degree.

The grading scale for the Department of Vocational Nursing:

A91 - 100%

B 82-90%

C 75-81%

F < 74.5% (No score below 74.5% will be rounded to a passing grade)

Please Note: There is no "D" grade given in the Department of Vocational Nursing.

Nursing Skills Lab and Clinical Practice I is evaluated based on skill competency and assessment skills on a PASS or FAIL basis.

\*All students must pass the Dosage Calculation Quizzes/ Medication Math in order to establish competency. Competency will be measured by obtaining a minimum 90%. Students will be given two opportunities to take the quiz/exam with a minimum of 3 days between testing and evidence of remediation must be provided before the 2nd attempt. Failure of the medication math exam the third time constitutes a failure in the clinical course for that term. In this case, the student must withdraw (W) from the corresponding theory course, as theory and clinical must be taken concurrently. The student may not progress in the program until the clinical course is successfully passed.

The student's name on all attendance sheets, forms, tests or quizzes, written work, and clinical papers or charting must be legible. Any signature that is unreadable will not be given credit for the work. In the clinical setting, if such an incident poses a threat to the safety or well-being of a patient, the student may be warned with progression to probation.

The syllabi for courses with a clinical component provide the student with grading criteria, the objective or competencies the student is expected to demonstrate, and the indicators which identify satisfactory performance. Students who receive a failing evaluation in the clinical area will be excluded from the course at that time and need to withdraw from the course. A student who is not doing satisfactory work in the classroom will be allowed to continue to the end of the semester if he or she chooses. It is the student's responsibility to be aware of drop and withdraw deadlines, their own progress, and the impact of a failing grade on their GPA. The faculty and Director cannot overturn mandatory dates established by Admissions and Records in compliance with state law.

Students must use the required textbooks as outlined in their course syllabus. Unless the instructor specifies otherwise, an electronic book (e-book) is allowed in place of a physical textbook.

Students who are enrolled in any nursing course which integrates theory and clinical experiences within the unit structure, must be successful in both components. A student who fails an integrated course must repeat the entire course, both clinical and didactic.

The student who fails any two nursing courses or the same course twice will be dismissed and ineligible to return. A student may re enroll in a course only once after a previous withdrawal. Enrollment is defined as attending at least one class meeting.

Any student who withdraws while performing unsatisfactory work (clinically or academically) is considered for Department reentry criteria to have failed the course.

### REMEDIATION POLICY

Students are required to repeat any failed course. Students will be allowed to repeat a failed course once (Grade of "F" or "W"). Both the grade for the failed course and the repeated course will appear on the transcript, but only the most recent grade will be used in calculating GPA. However, the original course and repeated course credit hours are included in the maximum time frame and rate of progress calculations. Students may incur a fee for repeating class(es).

# STUDENT RECORDS (CEC §94900, CCR §71810(b)(15) and §71920)

## **POLICY:**

Academic record retention will be maintained in a manner that is consistent with BPPE, BVNPT, State, and federal legal requirements.

### PROCEDURE:

Student records will be maintained by the faculty. Student's academic files and financial records are maintained in separate files.

The table below outlines the most common records.

Type of Record	Repository	Duration
Holds (registration, diploma,	Director of Nursing Office	Until released
transcripts)		
Leave of Absence	Director of Nursing Office	5 years from graduation or
		date of last attendance.
Name Change Authorizations	Director of Nursing Office	5 years from graduation or
		date of last attendance.
Transcripts	Director of Nursing Office	Permanent
Financial Records	QuickBooks. Required:	7 years from the fiscal year of
	1. Original promissory notes	creation, unless the retention
	should be kept until the loan	schedule specifically states
	is satisfied or the documents	otherwise, as is the case with
	are no longer needed to	records related to contracts.
	enforce the obligation.	
	2.Invoices and Receipts.	
	3.Records pertaining to the	
	amount of a loan, terms of	
	repayment, and the	
	repayment history should be	
	kept for three (3) years from	
	the date on which a loan is	

	assigned, is canceled, or is	
	repaid.	
Grades	Moodle. Required: Final	5 years from graduation or
	Grades in Moodle are kept for	date of last attendance.
	5 years after graduation.	
	Recommended: Exams,	
	quizzes and projects kept 5	
	years.	
Transfer Credit Evaluations	Director of Nursing Office	5 years from graduation or
		date of last attendance.

## BASIC PROCEDURES FOR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION:

- 1. Maintain all records in designated room within a locked filing cabinet.
- 2. Files should not be left out unattended. The public should not be able to view any student information including student's names on files, binders or documents.
- 3. Individual files are to be checked out using an insert that identifies the student, the date, and person accessing the files.
- 4. Use initials or first name and last initial when possible.
- 5. Files moving between sites need to be clearly marked confidential and tracked as to when they were sent by whom and when received.
- 6. All records sent outside of Meta Polytechnic needs to have documentation as to sending and receiving information.
- 7. Files kept by educators with confidential information also need to be treated with the same process to protect the information.

### ACCESS TO STUDENT RECORDS

- Access means a personal inspection and review of a record, an accurate copy of a record
  or receipt of an accurate copy of a record, an oral description or communication of a
  record, and a request to release a copy of any record.
- Personally identifiable information includes but is not limited to the student's name, the address of the student or student's family, a personal identifier such as the student's social security number or student number, biometric records such as fingerprints, DNA, or retinal scans, and a list of personal characteristics or other information that would make the student's identity easily traceable.
- Those granted access are prohibited from releasing information to another person or agency without written permission from the student. A student's representative such as an attorney or advocate may access records if student has signed a release.

## PROCEDURE FOR ACCESS

1. To inspect, review or obtain copies of student records, authorized persons shall submit a request via email (<a href="mailto:admin@Metapolytechnic.com">admin@Metapolytechnic.com</a>) to the custodian of records. Authorized

- persons from outside the school whose access requires consent from the student shall submit their request, together with any required authorization, to the custodian of records.
- 2. Within five days following the date of request, an authorized person shall be granted access to inspect, review and obtain copies of student records during regular school hours.

#### PERSONS WITH ACCESS TO STUDENT RECORDS

Persons, agencies or organizations specifically granted access rights pursuant to law shall have access without written consent or judicial order. In addition, consent is not required when information is shared with other persons within educational institutions, agencies or organizations obtaining access, as long as those persons have legitimate education interest in the information

The following persons or agencies shall have absolute access to any and all student records in accordance with law:

### **ABSOLUTE ACCESS**

- 1. An adult student age 18 or older or a student under the age of 18 who attends a postsecondary institution, in which case the student alone shall exercise rights related to his/her student records and grant consent for the release of records.
- 2. Those so authorized in compliance with a court order or lawfully issued subpoena.

#### CONSENT TO RELEASE STUDENT RECORDS

- Written consent must specify the records to be released, identify the party or class of parties to whom records may be released, state the purpose(s) of the disclosure and be signed and dated by the student. Electronic consent is allowed as long as it identifies and verifies a particular person as the source of the consent.
- The recipient of the records must be notified that the transmission of information to others without the written consent of the student is prohibited; however, information may be shared with other persons within the educational institution obtaining access, as long as such persons have a legitimate interest in the information.

#### LOCATION OF RECORDS

Storage Location: Meta Polytechnic-2086 Otay Lakes Rd. Suite 201 Chula Vista, CA 91915

Hours: Monday – Friday 9:00AM – 5:00PM

Phone: (619)679-2893

Email: Admin@MetaPolytechnic.com

The custodian of record is the Program Administrator Gerald Guihama, RN MSN and is responsible for maintaining and storing records.

#### FAMILY EDUCATIONAL RIGHTS & PRIVACY ACT

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords students certain rights with respect to their education records. These rights include:

- The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 5 days of the day Meta Polytechnic receives a request for access. A student should submit to the Director of Nursing via email that identifies the record(s) the student wishes to inspect. Meta Polytechnic official will make arrangements for access and notify the student of the time and place where the records may be inspected. If the records are not maintained by Meta Polytechnic official to whom the request was submitted, that official shall advise the student of the correct official to whom the request should be addressed.
- The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the student believes are inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the student's privacy rights under FERPA. A student who wishes to ask Meta Polytechnic to amend a record should write Meta Polytechnic official responsible for the record, clearly identify the part of the record the student wants changed, and specify why it should be changed. If Meta Polytechnic decides not to amend the record as requested, the school will notify the student in writing of the decision and the student's right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the student when notified of the right to a hearing.
- The right to provide written consent before Meta Polytechnic discloses personally identifiable information from the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent.
- The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the school to comply with the requirements of FERPA.

The name and address of the office that administers FERPA is: Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202-5920

#### PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR

## STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

Students must adhere to the Code of Conduct, to include conduct that will not interfere with the learning process of any other student, the classroom instruction, or the progress of the class in general. Meta Polytechnic administration reserves the right, in the exercise of the outcome, to suspend and/or dismiss a student for any of the following reasons:

- Failure to abide by the rules and regulations of the school or any clinical site;
- Conduct or solicitation that reflects unfavorably upon the school or its students;
- Unsatisfactory academic progress;
- Excessive absences or tardiness;
- Failure to pay charges when due;
- Cheating;
- Falsifying school records;
- Breach of the school's Enrollment Agreement;
- Putting patient safety in jeopardy through the exercise of poor judgment or an inability to function properly;
- Entering the campus or classes while under the influence or effects of alcohol, drugs, or narcotics of any kind;
- Carrying a concealed or potentially dangerous weapon;
- Disruptive classroom behavior or conduct that interferes with the learning process of any other student, the classroom presentation by the teacher, or the progress of the class in general;
- Instigation of, or participation in, rebellious activities against school or students;
- Profanity spoken on campus grounds;
- Vandalism of campus property;
- Copyright infringement;
- Physical threats; or
- Theft.

Operation of any type of audio or video recording device without prior approval is prohibited. Violations of this policy may lead to disciplinary actions up to and including dismissal from school. A student dismissed for unsatisfactory conduct is not eligible for readmission.

## **DRESS CODE**

Students are preparing for careers and should develop the habit of wearing appropriate attire. Students are required to wear the designated school uniform in class and on externship or clinical experience unless directed otherwise. Clinical/externship sites may require students to wear white shoes. Students are responsible for meeting dress code requirements for the site.

A student's personal appearance must be appropriate at all times when the student is in school uniform. The general requirements are as follows:

- Uniforms or scrubs must be clean, wrinkle-free and well-fitted.
- Pants must be proper length.
- No outerwear is permitted in the classroom except for a lab coat or sweater as established by school/program standards.
- Shoes must be leather or vinyl in solid white or black color, OSHA compliant, closed-toed, and closed heel. Students must keep their shoes clean and polished.
- Underclothing is to be worn while in uniform. Undergarments must not be visible.
- The ID badge is part of the uniform and must be visible at all times.
- School-approved outerwear may be worn over the regulation uniform.
- T-shirts or turtlenecks may be worn under scrubs, but they must be tucked in.
- T-shirts or turtlenecks must be removed in the lab if they become a safety hazard.
- Jewelry may not be worn with the uniform, except for one pair of small stud earrings, one ring (e.g., wedding and/or engagement ring, class ring) and a watch. Dangling earrings, hoop earrings, or multiple earrings will not be permitted. A single necklace that does not dangle may also be worn. For safety reasons, no jewelry may be worn under protective gloves. Jewelry used in body/tongue piercing other than the earlobe is not acceptable. Medical identification worn as a bracelet or necklace is acceptable.
- Hair must be of a natural hue, neatly combed, clean, and pulled away from the face, so that it does not hang in the face when bending over during lab/clinical activities. No head covers, including beads or jewels interwoven into the hair are to be worn. All religious head coverings must be approved by the Director of Nursing.
- Fingernails must be kept short, clean, and neatly manicured. No polish, acrylic nails, overlays, or any synthetic enhancements to the natural nails.
- Proper daily hygiene, including the use of antiperspirant and mouthwash, is essential because students work very closely with others. Cologne and perfume should not be worn.

Failure to comply with the above expectations may result in dismissal from the classroom, externship, and/or clinical site.

## HAZING POLICY

Hazing is any conduct or initiation into any organization that willfully or recklessly endangers the physical or mental health of any person. Its imposition, or its use in any form of initiation, is prohibited. Violation of this policy will result in disciplinary actions against the violator to include counseling and possible withdrawal from Meta Polytechnic.

## CLASSROOM AND LABORATORY CONDUCT

- Safety: Because of the health hazards inherent in the healthcare field, safety, health, fire prevention, and proper procedures for handling materials and equipment are stressed in every healthcare class. Rules and safety procedures are posted in each lab.
- Breakage: Although no laboratory breakage is charged, payment may be charged for any deliberate and intentional breakage of equipment.
- Eating: No food or beverages are allowed in laboratories. No food or beverages are allowed in classrooms except bottled water with a top.
- Cleanliness: Students are evaluated as to how they care for and maintain equipment. Housekeeping duties will be required of all students. Students are responsible for always keeping facilities and equipment clean and neat.
- Homework: Required homework assignments are to be turned in when due. Each student should be prepared to devote time daily to home study.
- Lecture Notes: Students are required to take adequate lecture notes daily.

### STUDENT COMPUTER NETWORK AND INTERNET CONDUCT

Meta Polytechnic provides students access to its computer network and Internet access for purposes directly related to education. The Academy reserves the right to monitor all usage of its computers and computer systems. This includes the monitoring of email and website access. The following practices are prohibited:

- Installing or executing unauthorized software. Using computers to copy copyrighted or licensed software.
- Using the network for commercial purposes. Users may not buy or sell products or services through the system without prior consent of the corporate network administrator.
- Using the network for advertising or political lobbying.
- Accessing websites, newsgroups, or chat areas that contain material that is sexually related, obscene, or that promotes illegal acts. If a user accidentally accesses this type of information, he or she should immediately notify an instructor, the Learning Resource Center Coordinator, and/or network administrator.
- Using the network for any activity or to transmit any material that violates federal, state, or local laws. This includes, but is not limited to, illegal activities, such as threatening the safety of another person or peer-to-peer file sharing of copyrighted materials.
- Using vulgar, derogatory, or obscene language. Users may not engage in personal attacks, harass another person, or post private information about another person.
- Logging on to another person's account or attempting to access another user's files.
- "Hacking" or otherwise trying to gain access to another person's or organization's computer system.
- Engaging in "spamming" (sending an email to more than 10 people at the same time) or participation in chain letters.
- Intentionally damaging any computer hardware or software. Computer and network resources are of significant value, and their abuse can have a negative effect on other users.

Noncompliance with this policy may result in loss of computer and network privileges, suspension, and/or withdrawal from Meta Polytechnic.

### **CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT**

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) is the law that applies to physicians regarding the completely confidential nature of patient information and applies to all Meta Polytechnic students and employees. Except where necessary in the regular course of business, the discussion, transmission, or narration in any form of any patient information of a personal nature, medical or otherwise, obtained in the regular course of the student's schooling or employment is strictly forbidden. Any violation of this professional rule shall constitute grounds for severe disciplinary action, including possible termination of the enrollment contract.

#### NO DISCRIMINATION OR HARASSMENT POLICY

Meta Polytechnic is committed to maintaining a work and learning environment that is free from discrimination and harassment for all Meta Polytechnic associates and students. Accordingly, the Academy does not authorize and will not tolerate any form of discrimination or harassment of or by an associate or student based on race, sex, religion, color, national origin, age, disability, or any other factor protected by law.

#### MARITAL OR PARENTAL STATUS

Meta Polytechnic will comply with all requirements outlined in 34 C.F.R. 106.40 (a) and (b) with regard to the marital or parental status of students. Any student is eligible for leave in the care of pregnancy, childbirth, false pregnancy, termination of pregnancy, and recovery therefrom for so long a period as deemed medically necessary by the student's physician, at the conclusion of which the student shall be reinstated to the status that he or she held when the leave began. For further information, please contact the Director of Nursing.

### **SEXUAL HARASSMENT**

The prevention and elimination of sexual harassment is of special concern to Meta Polytechnic. Sexual harassment includes:

- Physical assaults or physical conduct that is sexual in nature;
- Unwelcome sexual advances or comments or requests for sex or sexual activities, regardless of whether they are based on promises or threats;
- Sexual displays or publications such as calendars, cartoons, or graffiti;
- Other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature that has the purpose or effect of interfering with an individual's work or academic performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work and learning environment; or
- Retaliation for complaints of harassment. Meta Polytechnic regards all such pervasive conduct as creating a hostile and offensive work and learning environment in violation of this policy.

Examples of sexual harassment include sexual propositions, sexual innuendo, sexually suggestive comments, sexually oriented "kidding," "teasing" or "practical jokes," jokes about gender-specific traits, foul or obscene language or gestures, displays of foul or obscene printed or visual material, physical contact such as patting, pinching or brushing against another's body, or reading or otherwise publicizing in the work and learning environment materials that are sexually suggestive or revealing.

## RACIAL, RELIGIOUS, OR NATIONAL ORIGIN HARASSMENT

Racial, religious, or national origin harassment deserves special mention as well and is expressly prohibited by this policy. Racial, religious, or national origin harassment includes any verbal, written, or physical act in which race, religion, or national origin is used or implied in a manner that would make a reasonable student or associate uncomfortable in the work and learning environment. Examples of racial, religious, or national origin harassment include jokes that include reference to race, religion or national origin, the display or use of objects or pictures that adversely reflect on a person's race, religion, or national origin, or use of language that is offensive due to a person's race, religion, or national origin.

#### **CAMPUS SAFETY POLICY**

Meta Polytechnic is committed to providing a safe and productive environment for all academy associates and students. To help prevent incidents of violence from occurring, Meta Polytechnic has implemented this campus safety policy. Meta Polytechnic expressly prohibits any acts or threats of violence by an associate, student, or former associate against any other associate or student in or about its facilities or clinical sites at any time. Meta Polytechnic does not condone any acts or threats of violence against associates, students, clients, or visitors by an individual on the school's premises at any time or while such an individual is engaged in business with or on behalf of Meta Polytechnic, on or off the academy's premises. In keeping with the spirit and intent of this policy and to ensure that the objectives in this regard are attained, Meta Polytechnic is committed to the following policies:

- Providing a safe and healthy work and educational environment.
- Taking prompt remedial action up to and including immediate dismissal of any associate or student who engages in any threatening behavior or acts of violence or uses obscene, abusive, or threatening language or gestures.
- Taking appropriate action when dealing with clients, former associates or students, or visitors to the academy's campus who engage in such behavior. Such action may include notifying the police or other law enforcement personnel and prosecuting violators of this policy.
- Prohibiting associates, former associates, students, clients, and visitors from bringing unauthorized firearms or other weapons onto the school's premises.

In furtherance of this policy, associates and students have a "duty to alert" their instructors, Director of Nursing, or adjunct faculty of any suspicious activity, situations, or incidents that they observe or know of that involve other associates, students, former associates, clients, or

visitors and that appear problematic. This would include threats or acts of violence, aggressive behavior, offensive acts, and threatening or offensive comments or remarks. Associate and student reports made pursuant to this policy are held in confidence to the extent possible.

Meta Polytechnic will not condone any form of retaliation against any associate or student for making a report in good faith under this policy.

Threats against individual(s) and/or Meta Polytechnic should be immediately reported to the Director of Nursing, instructors, or adjunct faculty. It is critical that any material relevant to the incident be maintained until Human Resources decides on the proper disposition. Confrontational threats while on campus may be dealt with by a representative of Meta

Polytechnic. Actions may include suspension (for gathering additional facts), written warning, or dismissal.

#### WITHDRAWAL FOR VIOLATION OF SCHOOL POLICY

The school may withdraw a student from the Vocational Nursing Program for violation of published school policy. If a student withdraws from school without notifying the school, the withdrawal will be effective from the last date of attendance. If the student is withdrawn for violation of published school policy, the withdrawal date will be the last date of attendance.

A student who has been withdrawn during the first five days of a grading period will not have that course(s) recorded on his or her transcript. A student who has been withdrawn after the first five days of a grading period will receive a grade of "W," which is not calculated in his or her cumulative grade point average (CGPA). The credits will count toward attempted credits.

## **GRIEVANCE POLICY**

It is the policy of Meta Polytechnic that all students shall be treated fairly and be free from discrimination and harassment. Meta Polytechnic will strictly enforce this policy and diligently investigate any violation of a student's rights. This Grievance Policy is the formal method for students and staff to bring rights violations to the Academy's attention so that they may be investigated and resolved. Students are encouraged, at all times, to communicate their concerns to members of the faculty and administration. If the situation arises where student has a complaint or a grievance, the student is to adhere to the following procedure:

# 1. Application.

A. Grievances may arise from any violation of a student's rights. This policy applies to complaints and concerns arising from any such violation, including but not limited to:

- 1. Unfair academic treatment, including:
  - a. unfair or improperly conducted disciplinary proceedings
  - b. unfair academic dismissal
- 2. Discrimination and/or harassment based upon:

- a. disabilities
- b. ethnicity
- c. age
- d. gender
- e. sexual orientation.
- f. religion
- 3. Improper conduct, including:
  - a. sexual harassment
  - b. sexual misconduct
  - c. sexual assault
  - d. bullying
  - e. retaliation
- B. The Grievance Policy does not apply to the following academic and nonacademic areas of concern:
  - 1. Admission and transfer credit
  - 2. Academic Progress and Program Requirements
  - 3. Privacy Information
  - 4. Tuition and Fees
  - 5. Financial Aid
  - 6. Library and/or Technology
  - 7. Other Academic Policies
  - 8. Courses and Course Syllabi
- C. The Grievance Policy does not apply to grade changes.
- 2. Filing a Grievance.
- A. Informal Resolution. Students who believe they have been a recipient of discrimination, harassment or unfair treatment are encouraged to talk with the faculty or staff member to discuss and attempt to resolve their concerns informally. Please note, however, that students are not required to attempt informal resolution before filing a grievance.
- B. A student who believes their rights have been violated shall complete and submit a Grievance form, available at the office of the Director of Nursing, within five (5) business days of the violation. In order to initiate an effective investigation, the following information will be needed:
  - 1. Exact nature of grievance.
  - 2. Supporting information that a problem exists.

3. Suggested remediation or resolution to the issue.

# 3. <u>Investigating the Grievance</u>.

A. Upon receipt of a properly completed Grievance or Incident Form, Meta Polytechnic shall assign the Grievance to a designated investigator who shall diligently investigate the complaint or report. The investigator shall commence his or her investigation within five (5) business days of receipt of the Grievance Form or Incident Report. Any incident involving sexual violence will be investigated within 12 hours of submission of on-line incident form.

- 1. The precise investigation procedure may vary based upon the nature of the complaint or incident, but each investigation will include the following actions by the investigator:
  - a) Reviewing the written complaint or incident report.
  - b) Gathering of information.
  - c) Interviewing the parties involved and/or potential witnesses.
  - d) Reviewing relevant documentation and other evidence.
  - e) Reviewing applicable Meta Polytechnic policies and procedures.
- B. The investigation shall be concluded within twenty (20) business days from its commencement. If extraordinary circumstances require more time to complete the investigation, the investigator shall notify the Director of Nursing, in writing, before the original twenty (20) day period has expired. Upon written approval from the Director of Nursing, the investigator may be granted an additional fourteen (14) days to complete the investigation. The complaining/reporting party shall be notified in writing of any extension granted.
- C. If, after conducting a thorough and diligent investigation, it is clear to the Investigator that no rights have been violated, the Investigator may close the investigation. In that event, the Investigator shall provide written notice of closure to all parties within three (3) days of closing the investigation.

# 4. Concluding the Grievance Investigation.

A. For grievances involving academic violations of student rights:

- 1. The Investigator shall notify the Director of Nursingof the results of the completed investigation, including all findings and documentation.
- 2. The Director of Nursing shall make a decision as to whether the student's academic rights were violated.
- 3. In the event the Director of Nursing determines that there has been an academic violation or violations of student rights, the Director of Nursing will determine and implement the appropriate remedies.
- 4. The Director of Nursing shall then notify the Complaining Student and any accused persons, in writing, of the Director's decision, including any remedies to be implemented, within fourteen (14) business days of the completion of the investigation.

- B. For grievances involving complaints of discrimination, harassment, or misconduct:
  - 1. The Director of Nursing will meet to review the investigator's findings and documentation within three (3) business days of receiving said materials.
  - 2. If, based upon its review of the investigator's findings and documentation, the Director of Nursing determines that there is reason to believe discrimination, harassment, or misconduct may have occurred, then the Director of Nursing shall schedule a hearing, where it shall consider all relevant evidence including the testimony of all parties and witnesses to the Grievance.
    - a. The Director of Nursing shall notify all parties and witnesses of the date, time, and location of the Hearing, not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time the Hearing is to commence. Notification shall be deemed properly given when sent by email. Notification will include all to be in attendance.
    - b. At the hearing, any persons accused in the Grievance shall be given the opportunity to give testimony and may invite witnesses to testify on their behalf.
    - c. The rules of evidence which would ordinarily apply in a court of law shall not apply to this Hearing. The Director of Nursing may consider any evidence which they believe to be relevant and reliable.
    - d. Minutes of the Hearing shall be kept. The minutes shall be the sole property of Meta Polytechnic, shall be kept strictly confidential, and shall not be subject to review by any party.
  - 3. Following the hearing, the Director of Nursing shall meet, and shall make a determination as to whether discrimination occurred, and if so, the Director of Nursing shall apply any and all appropriate sanctions and/or craft an appropriate remedy.
  - 4. If the Director of Nursing determines that discrimination, harassment, or misconduct has occurred then the Director of Nursing, will ensure that:
    - a. The discrimination, harassment, or misconduct is stopped.
    - b. The sanctions and other remedies, as determined by the Director of Nursing, are implemented.
    - c. Prevention efforts are implemented.
    - d. If applicable, reported to appropriate authority.
  - 5. Whether or not a hearing is conducted, the Director of Nursing shall notify all parties to the Grievance of its decision, including any and all sanctions and remedies to be implemented, within three (3) business days of reaching its decision.
- C. Students will not be subject to adverse action as a result of filing a Grievance, or participation in the investigation or hearing of a Grievance. Retaliation against any student due to any involvement in the filing or investigation of a Grievance is expressly prohibited.
- D. Confidentiality of Grievance Process

All grievances shall be handled with strict confidentiality. To protect the privacy, dignity, and rights of all individuals involved, the details of the grievance, including the names of the student (accuser) and the accused, are to remain solely between these two parties and the assigned investigator, unless otherwise required for a fair and thorough investigation.

The investigator may contact only those individuals whose direct involvement is essential to establishing the facts. Any disclosure beyond this will be limited to what is necessary to determine the outcome and implement remedies.

Any breach of confidentiality, by any student, staff member, or witness, may compromise the integrity of the process, delay resolution, and in some cases, render the grievance inconclusive or void. Breaches may also be subject to separate disciplinary review under school policy.

Retaliation or intimidation in any form related to the grievance, investigation, or outcomes is strictly prohibited and will result in appropriate disciplinary action.

E. Any student not satisfied with the disposition of the Grievance process may contact:

Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians 2535 Capitol Oaks DriveSuite 205, Sacramento, CA 95833

Phone: (916) 263-7800 Website: www.bvnpt.ca.gov

Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education P.O. Box 980818 West Sacramento, CA 95798-0818

Phone: (916) 574-8900 Website: www.bppe.ca.gov

Any questions a student may have regarding this catalog that have not been satisfactorily answered by the institution may be directed to the Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education at 1747 North Market, Suite 225 Sacramento, CA 95834, P.O. Box 980818, West Sacramento, CA 95798, www.bppe.ca.gov, toll free telephone number (888) 370-7589 Fax (916) 263-1897.

A student or any member of the public may file a complaint about this institution with the Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education by calling (888) 370-7589 toll-free or by completing a complaint form, which can be obtained on the bureau's internet web site <a href="https://www.bppe.ca.gov">www.bppe.ca.gov</a>.

Meta Polytechnic does not have any pending petition in bankruptcy, is operating as a debtor in possession, or has filed a petition with the preceding 5 years, nor has had a petition in bankruptcy filed against it within the preceding five years that resulted in reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (11 U.S.C. Sec. 1101 et seq.). (CEC §94909(a)(12))

"The Office of Student Assistance and Relief is available to support prospective students, current students, or past students of private postsecondary educational

institutions in making informed decisions, understanding their rights, and navigating available services and relief options. The office may be reached by calling (888)370-7589 or by visiting httpd://www.osar.bppe.ca.gov/."

#### STUDENT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

As a prospective student, you are encouraged to review this catalog prior to signing an enrollment agreement. You are also encouraged to review the School Performance Fact Sheet, which must be provided to you prior to signing an enrollment agreement". (CEC §94909(a)(3)(b))

I certify that I have received the catalog, School Performance Fact Sheet, and information regarding completion rates, placement rates, license examination passage rates, and salary or wage information, and the most recent three-year cohort default rate, if applicable, included in the School Performance Fact sheet, and have signed, initialed, and dated the information provided in the School Performance Fact Sheet.

I understand that this is a legally binding contract. My signature below certifies that I have read, understood, and agreed to my rights and responsibilities, and that the institution's cancellation and refund policies have been clearly explained to me.

Signature of Student:						
Date:	_/	/	_			